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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
RTYER(E)

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Room 1501, 15th Floor
Malaysia Building

50 Gloucester Road, Wan Chai
Hong Kong

With effect from 1 May 2019, headquarters and principal place of
business in Hong Kong be changed as:

Room 1302, 13th Floor,

Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre,
56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Principal Bankers in Chengdu, Sichuan, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC” or “China”)

Bank of Communications Sichuan Branch
No. 211 West Xiyulong Street

Chengdu, Sichuan

The PRC

China Bohai Bank Chengdu Branch
22 Floors, Building 4

Teda Times Center

87 South Road

High-tech Zone

Chengdu, Sichuan

The PRC

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong Laws

L&C Legal LLP

In Association with

Jingtian & Gongcheng

Suites 3205-3207, 32/F.,

Edinburgh Tower, The Landmark,

15 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued])
ATYER(E)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Oriental Patron Asia Limited
27/F Two Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN STATEMENT
FTRBSE

The year of 2018 is the first year Everbright Grand China Assets
Limited (the “Company” or together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) since it was listed in Hong Kong and the Group has made
continuous, stable and healthy development in this year. As a
member of China Everbright Group Limited (Ff B ¢ KX & B % 9 A&
al), Everbright Grand China Assets Limited has been pursuing the
value preservation and appreciation of state-owned assets since its
establishment. The Company strives to bring returns to investors
by continuously increasing the value of its properties and operating
profits in the major business of the Company including those in
properties, property investment and management services.

With current cash surplus, gearing ratio maintaining at a low level
and the abundant liquidity, the Group is in a favorable condition for
seizing any development and investment opportunities that may
arise, optimizing the shareholders’ value.

Affected by the Sino-US trade frictions and uncertainties in the
global economic growth and development, the domestic and
international markets remain unclear. Since the European, American
and Asia-Pacific stock markets were under the pressure of US
dollar and US Federal Reserve shrinking its balance sheet and
hiking its interest rates in 2018, the management kept an eye on
the uncertainties of the market and the challenges encountered
by the Group. Meanwhile, the management will also cope with the
changes in the investment market with a prudent and responsible
attitude while figuring out the most suitable development pace for
the Company rationally and with due care.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to the employees of the Group for their dedicated efforts to

maintain the growth and advancement of the Group, and also to all
of our shareholders for their unwavering support and trust.

Chairman of the Board
LIU Jia

19 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBEYEm RO

FINANCIAL RESULT

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company and revenue
amounted to approximately RMB36.6 million (2017: approximately
RMB24.3 million) and approximately RMB61.7 million (2017:
approximately RMB66.7 million) respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property
leasing, property management and sales of properties held for sale.

The Group’s profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 was approximately
RMB36.6 million (2017: approximately RMB24.3 million), which
represented an increase of approximately 50.6% as compared
to the last year. The increase in profit was mainly due to the
increase in (i) revenue from property leasing, (i) valuation gains on
investment properties and (i) other income. Moreover, reduction of
administrative expenditure was one of the reasons for the increase
in profit for this year. The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately RMB61.7 million (2017:
approximately RMB66.7 million), which represented a decrease of
approximately RMB5.0 million compared with last year, mainly due
to no non-recurring revenue from sales of the residential properties
in 2018. On the contrary, revenue on core business from property
leasing and property management was grown in 2018 as compared
with last year. The basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately RMB0.08 as compared to basic
earnings per share of approximately RMBO0.07 for the corresponding
period of last year. The review of the individual business segment of
the Group is set out below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEESwmRD I (K)

PROPERTY LEASING BUSINESS

The rental income from the Group’s property leasing business was
approximately RMB43.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: RMB39.5 million). The Group’s leasing properties
are located in Chengdu, Sichuan province and Kunming, Yunnan
province in the PRC. Our property portfolio comprises three
commercial buildings, namely Everbright Financial Center, part of
Everbright International Mansion and Ming Chang Building, with a
total gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 88,529 sg.m. and
residential properties, namely part of Dufu Garden, with a total GFA
of approximately 1,242 sq.m. This year, rental income increased
was mainly due to increase in new tenants and increment of monthly
rent.

MEHEEEK

AEEMEHEZFB E20185F 12 431
HEFEMNHESRADBARKLIZSEH
BL(2017F : ARMIQSEETL) - &%
EmHEEMEMN P EMIIIAEKET R
EMERET BMOYWEEAEBIE=
REXEFEIRXRERP O - HAREE
REMEDMERBERENTDWE -
mEEmE([EEEmME]) 4 A88,529F
FRIBREEMEBREELENITH Y
¥ BEREMBLOHB1242F FHK) c KAF
E AW ABMEZHRFAELEM
&AM EFFTE -

Property Leasing Portfolio YEHEEHS
Average occupancy rate
Average occupancy rate (Commercial use) 1 Revenue
THRRE
GFA Commercial %ﬂﬂﬂﬁ (%%mﬁ) m l&)\
owned  use GFAM 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
filEs BERE
BEYER LREEE0 20185 017% 2185 M17% 20185 20178
(sq. m) (sq.m) (%) (%) (%) (%) RwB fvB
(million) (million)
(F5H) (Er7) (%) (%) (%) (%) NEE NEE
(6&r)  (BET)
Commercial Properties BENE
Everbright Financial Center YALBHBL 33,357 30,178 83% 76% 92% 82% 24.8 21.8
Everbright International Mansion ¢ A B A& 38,199 28,905 71% 71% 95% 100% 9.1 8.3
Ming Chang Buiding HEAE 16973 14,489 99% 99% 99% 99% 89 87
88,529 73,567 428 388
Residential Properties frehg
Dufu Garden HEZE 1,242 1,242 100% 100% 100% 100% 0.7 0.7
89,771 74,809 435 39.5
Note: Bt -
(1) Excluding warehouses and parking spaces which cannot be used as (1) HBRATAIARBAE BETHEHEEN

offices, commercial spaces or residence.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESmRD I (K)

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICE

In order to maximize the value of our properties, we have a
professional property management team to provide the property
management services for our properties, Everbright Financial
Center and Everbright International Mansion. Revenue from the
Group’s entirety property management services was approximately
RMB18.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMB20.4 million). During the year, although the revenue from our
property management services increased due to newly awarded/
renewed contracts, the increase was offset by the decrease in the
non-recurring value-added property management services income.
Total GFA under our management increased to approximately
59,078 sg.m., an increase of 13% as compared with the end of last
corresponding year (2017: 52,236 sg.m.).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Our investment properties mainly consist of land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. The total value of the
investment properties was RMB900.9 million at the year ended
31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: RMB876.6 million). The
valuation gain on investment properties for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately RMB33.8 million
(2017: approximately RMB18.6 million), representing an increase
of approximately RMB15.2 million over last year which reflected an
improvement of property market conditions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEESwmRD I (K)

PROSPECTS

Looking forward, the Group believes that Chinese economic
development has entered into a new phase, which is from speedy
growth to high quality growth. Following the comprehensive building
of a well-off society and jointly building of “One Belt, One Road”,
the Chinese economy will build up its inner momentum relentlessly
and continue the positive trend. The constant implementation of
in-depth reforms in important areas, nurturing of new momentum
and reform on traditional momentum will create synergies. The PRC
will continue to be the main driver and stabilizer of global economic
growth. It is expected that the office market of Chengdu and
Kunming City in the PRC will continue to benefit from the continuous
robust development of the economy in Western China and steadily
grow. In order to improve the good and reasonable occupancy rate
and steady recurring income, the Group will continue to enhance its
quality management and strengthen its competitive rental strategies.

On the other hand, the Group will adopt a variety of measures to
increase our corporate efficiency, enhance the informationization
of management, as well as increase management efficiency. We
shall properly manage our general fund planning and operation, give
full play to the advantages of “Everbright” brand and its credibility
and strive to further improve income with continuous control on its
operational cost.

Currently, the Group will continue the existing plan and focus on the
United Kingdom as our primary overseas investment destination.
Given the lower exchange rate of British pounds at present and the
mature market of London, the Group can diversify its investment
portfolio and consider that there are certain investment opportunities
and attractiveness of London. The Group will explore and expand
opportunities of property portfolio of the Group through acquisition
of properties with a better net initial yield and stability of tenant
leasing.

Meanwhile, the Group also is seeking for quality investment projects
in the PRC. We adopt the “strong-strong cooperation” approach to
increase the chance of internal cooperation with China Everbright
Group Limited (“China Everbright Group”) and together to develop
and integrate relevant high-quality properties. We also expect to
jointly develop and expand our asset size with strong investors in
the PRC to further increase profit for the Group and realize a sizable
upgrade in asset quality to give back to our shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESmRD I (K)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately RMB879.1 million (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB719.3 million). As at 31 December 2018, the Group maintained
cash and cash equivalents of approximately RMB181.3 million (31
December 2017: approximately RMB42.4 million). The Group’s
net current assets of approximately RMB166.7 million as at 31
December 2018 (31 December 2017: approximately RMB26.3
million). The Group had current assets of approximately RMB203.8
million as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: approximately
RMB55 million). The increase of current assets was mainly due to
proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares under the global offering
of the shares of the Company on 16 January 2018 (“Listing Date”)
and the reclassification of certain investment property to properties
held for sale. The Group had current liabilities of RMB37.2 million
(81 December 2017: approximately RMB28.7 million). The increase
of current liabilities was mainly due to increase of accrued listing
expenses and accrued staff costs.

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated
cash flow and bank loans in the PRC. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group had outstanding bank loans of approximately RMB26.5
million (31 December 2017: approximately RMB32.5 million). The
bank loans as at 31 December 2018 were secured by the Group’s
investment properties.

The Group’s gearing ratio is measured by the total interest-bearing
borrowings divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%. As at
31 December 2018, the gearing ratio was 3% (31 December 2017:
4.5%). The Group has implemented certain loan management
policies which include close monitoring of the gearing ratio and any
changes in interest rates.

The long-term funding and working capital required by the Group
are primarily derived from income generated from core business
operations and bank loans which were used to finance its business
operations and investment in construction projects. The Group’s
liquidity position was well-managed in this year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEESwmRD I (K)

To manage liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains a level of
cash and cash equivalents considered adequate by its management
to finance its operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flow. The Group’s management also monitors its net current
assets/liabilities and the utilization of borrowings to ensure efficient
use of the available banking facilities and compliance with loan
covenants.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Group’s transactions and monetary assets as well as all bank
loans are principally denominated in RMB. The management of the
Group is of the opinion that the Group has not experienced any
material difficulties or effects on its operations or liquidity as a result
of fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year ended
31 December 2018. Therefore, the Group did not engage in any
hedging activities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no contingent liability (2017:
Nil).

INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The percentages of the Group’s revenue (excluding interest
and dividend incomes) for the year ended 31 December 2018
attributable to the major customers of the Group were as follows:

Percentage of total revenue of the Group
13.3%
51.7%

The largest customer
Five largest customers in aggregate

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the major
customers noted above. Due to the nature of the business of the
Group, the Group does not have any major suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESmRD I (K)

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There was no material change in the capital structure of the
Company during the year, and the Company’s capital included
ordinary shares and other reserves.

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

The Group plans to invest in capacity expansion and pursue suitable
investment projects to capitalize the potential growth of the Group’s
business in the coming years in the manner set out in the section
headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of
the Company dated 29 December 2017 (the “Prospectus”). Such
source of funding would be primarily from the external resources.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

There were no significant investment held, nor was there any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries during the reporting
period.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there was no important
event affecting the Group which occurred after the reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEESwmRD I (K)

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

Chengdu Everbright International Mansion Co., Ltd (“Chengdu
Everbright International Mansion”) (g% #B XRKEER DT, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group in Chengdu, had a bank
loan with Bank of China Co., Ltd. since 2010. The long-term loan
of RMB73.0 million, maturing on 29 June 2022, was secured by
the building of Chengdu Everbright International Mansion with an
aggregate GFA of approximately 38,082 sg.m. . As at 31 December
2018, the outstanding loan balance was RMB26.5 million.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds from the Listing after deducting share issuance
expenses and listing expenses (“Net Proceeds”) was approximately
RMB116,130 thousand. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had
used approximately RMB4,888 thousand of Net Proceeds for the
purposes as set out in the Prospectus.
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Amount
unutilised as at

Amount
utilised as at

31 December

31 December

Net Proceeds 2018 2018
120184 120184
FR& 12A31H 12A31H
MIEFHE EEREHE RKEAEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTFIT AR®TF T ARETFIT
Acquisition of properties WEE KR F B mE
in major cities of
the United Kingdom
(“U.K.”) 92,904 - 92,904
Upgrade the building HOEAREE M EE
facilities and/or BB E
renovating the REENYE
properties of the Group 11,613 748 10,865
General corporate and —MEEREEES
working capital 11,613 4,140 7,473
Total et 116,130 4,888 111,242
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESmRD I (K)

Since the Group has not yet acquired any property in the U.K., the
remaining unused Net Proceeds are deposited into interest-bearing
bank accounts.

The remaining unused proceeds are and will be applied in the
manner consistent with that mentioned in the Prospectus. The
Directors considered that it would be in the best interest of the
Group without materially impairing its financial capabilities to
temporarily utilize such funds by earning interest income in the bank
accounts and are not aware of any material change to the proposed
use of the proceeds as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations of
the remuneration committee. The emoluments are determined with
reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and performances and
the results of the Group. No director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 134
full-time employees (2017: 156 employees) and appointed 8
directors. Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of the
Group were approximately RMB18.7 million (2017: RMB16.8 million).
The Group reviews the remuneration policies and packages on a
regular basis and makes necessary adjustment commensurate with
the remuneration level in the industry. In addition to a basic monthly
salary, year-end bonuses are offered to staff with outstanding
performance. A share option scheme has not been adopted during
the year.

The same remuneration policy is applicable to the fixing of Directors’
remuneration. Apart from market benchmarks, the Group considers
individual performance and contributions and the affordability of the
Group in determining the remuneration for each Director.

The Group has not experienced any significant problems with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labour disputes nor
has it experienced any difficulty in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff. The Group maintains a good relationship with its
employees.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Jia

Aged 54, is our executive Director, chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer, the chairman of investment committee and
a member of the remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.
Liu currently serves as a director and the chairman in three of the
Company’s subsidiaries, namely Growing China Limited (“Growing
China”), Brighter Win Limited and Metallic Field Limited (“Metallic
Field”). He is also the chairman of Chengdu Everbright Finance
Centre Development Co., Ltd. (“Finance Centre”) and Chengdu
Everbright International Mansion, and the director of several
subsidiaries of the Company, including Square Field Limited (“Square
Field”), First Step Corporation Limited (“First Step”), Everbright
Grand China Assets Management Limited (formerly known as
Eastmate Limited) and Chengdu Sing Kong City Real Estate
Company Limited (“Sing Kong City”). He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of China Everbright Group, a controlling shareholder of
the Company which directly holds 100% shares in China Everbright
Holdings Company Limited (“CE Hong Kong”).

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu served as the director and deputy
general manager of Capital Century Company Limited (“Capital
Century”) from November 1991 to December 2004, during which he
was mainly responsible for the day-to-day operations and property
investment and management of investment projects. Mr. Liu was
promoted to be the general manager of Capital Century in December
2004, upon which he became responsible for the overall operational
management and strategic development. He has been the chairman
of Capital Century since August 2014. From August 1997 to March
2000, he served as the deputy general manager in the real estate
department of CE Hong Kong and was responsible for the real
estate business operations and management of CE Hong Kong’s
local and overseas property development and property investment
projects. He re-joined CE Hong Kong as the executive director and
deputy general manager in August 2014. As the executive director of
CE Hong Kong, Mr. Liu was involved in several property investment
projects, such as the acquisition of Dah Sing Finance Center, which
is located in Wan Chai, Hong Kong. Mr. Liu served as the assistant
manager in China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. from April to December
2000 and was responsible for assisting the manager to handle the
bank’s business.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ESREREEBER(8)

Mr. Liu obtained a diploma of industrial and civil architecture in Jinling
Vocational University* (4 & B 3£ X £2) in July 1986 and a postgraduate
certificate of architecture, economics and management in Southeast
University (82 7 X £2) in August 1992, He has been a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors since July 2016.

Mr. LIN Zimin (former name known as Lin Siping)

Aged 60, is our executive Director and general manager and
also a member of the nomination and investment committee of
the Company. Mr. Lin currently serves as a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company, including Growing China, Brighter
Win Limited, Metallic Field, Finance Center, Chengdu Everbright
International Mansion, Square Field, First Step, Sing Kong City
and Everbright Grand China Assets Management Limited (formerly
known as Eastmate Limited). He has been acting the general
manager of Sing Kong City and Finance Center since September
2014 and Chengdu Everbright International Mansion since February
2018, and also the chairman of Chengdu Everbright Property
Management Co., Ltd. since November 2010.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lin had worked in the Fujian Province
International Culture Exchange Center from 1985 to 2010. He
served as the principal section member and deputy division chief
since January 1985 and September 1989, respectively, during which
periods he was responsible for international economic and cultural
exchange and investment solicitation. From June 1995 to July 2010,
he had served as the division chief and had been responsible for
the coordination of international economic, cultural and scientific
exchange. Mr. Lin joined Capital Century Company Limited as
an assistant general manager in August 2010 and has been
responsible for the development of properties and management of
the investment properties of the Group. He was promoted to be the
deputy general manager and general manager of Capital Century in
February 2012 and August 2014, respectively.

Mr. Lin obtained a bachelor degree in physics in Fujian Normal
University (f8 22 Bif &5 A £2) in January 1982.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued])

ESREREEBER(8)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. TSE Hang Mui

Aged 60, is our non-executive Director. Ms. Tse joined CE Hong
Kong as a secretary in the general affairs division in September
1987 and was promoted to secretary to vice president in December
1988. In October 1989, Ms. Tse was seconded to China Everbright
Medicine Company Limited, a subsidiary of CE Hong Kong, as
secretary and assistant manager. She was promoted to deputy
administrative manager and the administration manager in the
general management office of CE Hong Kong in December 1993
and December 1994, respectively. From April 1997 to February
2014, she served as an assistant general manager in the finance
management department of CE Hong Kong, in which she was
promoted to deputy general manager in February 2014. Her major
duties in the finance management department included treasury
management, financial analysis, capital budgeting and portfolio
valuation. Prior to joining CE Hong Kong, Ms. Tse had been a
secretary in Drs Anderson & Partners from May 1982 to July 1987,
during which she mainly assisted in running the accounts office
and undertaking the general secretarial work. She is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of China Everbright Group, a controlling
shareholder of the Company which directly holds 100% shares in
CE Hong Kong.

Ms. Tse obtained a diploma in management studies jointly awarded
by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and the Hong Kong
Management Association in September 1993, a bachelor degree
of commerce in management and marketing in Curtin University
of Technology, Australia in April 1996, a master degree of arts in
human resources management in Macquarie University, Australia
in October 1997, and a postgraduate diploma in professional
accounting in the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November
2000. Ms. Tse became an associate of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants in April 2002 and was admitted as a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in June 2007. She
is also an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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ESREREEBER(8)

Mr. LI Yinzhong

Aged 54, is our non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li served as the financial manager
of the Shenzhen office of China Everbright International Trust Co.,

Ltd. *(2 B % K B B {3 5t B PR A 7)) between August 1993 and
May 1998. He had then served in the audit department of China
Everbright Group from May 1998 to April 2000. Mr. Li joined CE
Hong Kong as the assistant general manager in the financial
management department in April 2000. Between March 2003 and
January 2016, he had served as the deputy general manager in the
investment management department of CE Hong Kong. He has
also been serving as the general manager of the audit department
of CE Hong Kong since January 2008. Since January 2016, he
has served as the general manager of the audit department and
the person-in-charge of the investment management department
of CE Hong Kong. Since April 2017, Mr. Li has been appointed
as a director of CE Hong Kong. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of China Everbright Group, a controlling shareholder of
the Company which directly holds 100% shares in CE Hong Kong.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor degree in economics in Zhongnan
University of Economics and Law (F & 8 & B J& K £) (formerly
known as Zhongnan University of Economics (7 & B & X £)) in
July 1987. Mr. Li has been a non-practicing member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since November 2004.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EZRkeREEBER(B)
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYEHITES
Mr. TSOI David BAMEE

Aged 71, is our independent non-executive Director and also the 713% B EHTEE - W A AA D A
chairman of the audit committee and a member of investment EZZE@XIFERKELZEEKE -
committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsoi has been a director of Alliott, Tsoi CPA Limited since  H200641 A & » £ % 4 T4 E & 56D
January 2006. He has been a certified public accountant since HEAERARIMNES - HBH19814F9A
September 1981 with over 30 years of experience in accounting, #A#M¥E St £t B LT B
auditing and financial management. He is also qualified as and has &2 S EE A BS0FE KL% - E M E A W@
been: TE®RKEREH :

(@) a certified public accountant registered at the Hong Kong (a) &E @I A @ Ma et
Institute of Certified Public Accountant;

(b) a certified tax advisor registered at the Taxation Institute of  (b) 7 7 5 %5 2 & 31 M B A5 A
Hong Kong;

(c) a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants () B 1981E9A#E  HHF ARG
since September 1981; EXRGE

(d) a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England  (d) B2015%5 8 #E » H &5 R BB+ 15
and Wales since May 2015; TEFMAEEREE

N

() amember of the Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors  (e) BE1987E4 A% - HHE A @D
since April 1987 and a fellow since December 2015; 2B RE2205F12ARABZAE
BEAXAEGE

(f)  afellow of the CPA Australia since November 2009; and ) HBH2009F11AR - BMESFTMAE
BArgE K

(@ amember of the Chartered Professional Accountants of British  (g) B2015%6 8 #E » f1E KX BB fm Lt
Columbia, Canada since June 2015. TRAEXSHMBENRE -
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ESREREEBER(8)

He has also been a non-executive director of the following listed
companies, all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”):

(@)

)

Loto Interactive Limited (formerly known as “Melcolot Limited”)
(stock code: 8198) from October 2001 to July 2017;

Enviro Energy International Holdings Ltd (stock code: 1102)

from July 2008 to June 2017;

Universal Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1026)
since June 2013;

Guru Online (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8121) since May
2014,

VPower Group International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1608) since October 2016;

Anxin-China Holdings Ltd (stock code: 1149) from February
2017 to May 2017;

Green International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2700) since
June 2017; and

Tianli Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 117) since August
2017.

Mr. Tsoi obtained a master degree of business administration in the
University of East Asia, Macau in October 1986.
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ESREREEBER(8)

Mr. SHEK Lai Him Abraham (former name known as Razack
Ebrahim Abdul and Abraham Razack)

Aged 73, is our independent non-executive Director and also the
chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. Shek obtained a bachelor degree
of arts and a diploma in education in the University of Sydney in
May 1969 and March 1970, respectively. He became the honorary
fellow of Lingnan University, the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology and the University of Hong Kong in November
2008, June 2014 and September 2016, respectively. In addition
to his achievements in the academic field, Mr. Shek has also
earned certain honorary titles in various ambits. He was appointed
as Justice of the Peace in July 1995 and awarded the Silver
Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region 2007 and 2013 Honors Lists, respectively.
He has also been a member of the advisory committee board of the
Independent Commission Against Corruption since January 2017.
Mr. Shek is currently a member of the Legislative Council for the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, the Court of The Hong
Kong University of Science & Technology, the Court and the Council
of The University of Hong Kong and a non-executive director of
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority of Hong Kong.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT
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ESREREEBER(8)

Mr. Shek currently serves as an independent non-executive director
in the following listed companies and collective investment schemes,
all of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange:(a) Paliburg
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0617) since July 2002; (b) Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1212) since March 2004;
(c) Chuang’s Consortium International Limited (stock code: 0367)
since May 2004; (d) NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 0659)
since September 2004; (e) Country Garden Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 2007) since March 2007; (f) MTR Corporation
Limited (stock code: 0066) since December 2007; (g) SUM Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0880) since January 2008; (h) Chuang’s China
Investments Limited (stock code: 0298) since April 2008; (i) Hop
Hing Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 0047) since April 2008; (j)
ITC Properties Group Limited (stock code: 0199) since September
2010; (k) China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (stock code:
1313) since January 2011; (I) Lai Fung Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1125) since December 2012; (m) Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0120) since December 2013; (n)
Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0530) since January
2017; (o) Regal Portfolio Management Limited, the manager of Regal
Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 1881) since November
2006; (p) Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, the manager of
Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 2778) since
May 2006; and (g) CSI Properties Limited (stock code: 0497) since
July 2018.
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He previously served as an independent non-executive director in
the following listed companies, all of which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange:

(@)

PT International Development Corporation Limited (formerly
known as “ITC Corporation Limited”) (stock code: 0372) from
June 2006 to March 2017;

Dorsett Hospitality International Limited (previous stock
code: 2266) (withdrawn from listing on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange on October 17, 2015) from September 2010 to
March 2016;

TUS International Limited (stock code: 0872) from June 2015
to January 2017; and

Magnus Concordia Group Limited (formerly known as “Midas
International Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 1172) from
August 2001 to January 2018.

Mr. Shek had been a non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited,
a public company incorporated in Hong Kong, from December 2004
to April 2016.
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ESREREEBER(8)

Mr. LEE Jor Hung

Aged 64, is our independent non-executive Director and also the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the
nomination and investment committee of the Company.

Mr. Lee is currently the chairman of DL Brokerage Limited, in which
he has been licensed as the dealing director and responsible officer
by the Securities and Futures Commission since August 1993
and October 2003, respectively, under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance to carry on type 1 (i.e. dealing in securities) and type 4
(i.e. advising on securities) regulated activities. He has also served
as the director and the permanent honorary president of Hong Kong
Securities Association Ltd. since August 1991 and September 1999,
respectively.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lee had served as a non-executive
director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (stock code:
0388), CIG Yangtze Ports PLC (stock code: 8233) and Sinofortune
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Stockmartnet
Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 8123), all of which being listed on
the Stock Exchange, from April 2000 to April 2006, September
2005 to November 2011, and May 2000 to May 2005, respectively.
He had also served as a director of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute from December 2003 to December 2008, and
become a fellow member and senior fellow since November 2012
and September 2014, respectively.
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ESREREEBER(8)

Mr. Lee had served as a member of the advisory committee and a
member of the process review panel to the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong, from June 1999 to May 2001 and from
November 2006 to October 2012, respectively. In addition, he had
also served as a member of Disciplinary Panel A and Investigation
Panel A of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
from February 2005 to January 2011 and from February 2011 to
January 2015, respectively. He had also been a member of the
Barrister Disciplinary Tribunal Panel from September 2005 to August
2015.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree of commerce in the University
of Alberta, Canada in May 1977 and a master degree of business
administration in the University of East Asia, Macau in October 1986.
He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region 2000 Honors List.

Ms. YU Pauline Wah Ling

Aged 71, is our independent non-executive Director and also a
member of the remuneration and investment committee of the
Company. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yu had served as the
lettings assistant and later as assistant manager of The Hongkong
Land Company Limited (formerly The Hongkong Land Investment
& Agency Co., Ltd.) from August 1971 to July 1981. She has also
worked in Hysan Development Company Limited (stock code:
0014), a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, since
1981. In November 1991, she was appointed as a director of Hysan
Development Company and was responsible for the strategic
development of the company’s property business. Ms. Yu retired as
an executive director in May 2008.

Ms. Yu obtained a bachelor degree of arts in the University of Hong
Kong in October 1971.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. LIU Jia

Aged 54, our chairman and one of our executive Directors, is
also our chief executive officer, a chairman of the investment
committee and a member of the remuneration committee of our
board of directors (the “Board”). For details of his qualifications, see
“— Biographies of Directors and Senior Management — Executive
Directors”.

Mr. LIN Zimin

Aged 60, one of our executive Directors, is also our general manager
and a member of the nomination committee and investment
committee of the Board. For details of his qualifications, see
“— Biographies of Directors and Senior Management — Executive
Directors”.

Mr. LEE Wai Kwong

Aged 44, is an assistant general manager of the Company.
Mr. Lee joined Capital Century in December 2007 and has been
responsible for the financial management in the group of Capital
Century since then. He currently serves as a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company, including Growing China, Metallic
Field, Finance Center, Square Field, First Step and Sing Kong City.
He had also served as a director of the Company from November
2010 to June 2017. Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree in
business (major in accounting) in Edith Cowan University in Perth,
Australia in 2000. Mr. Lee has been a certified public accountant
of CPA Australia since October 2013. He is responsible for the
financial management, project investment and human resources
management of the company. He is also one of our joint company
secretaries since June 2017.
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TEXEBRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to maintaining good
corporate governance standards. The Board believes that good
corporate governance standards are essential in providing a
framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and
policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)
as its own code of corporate governance since the Listing Date.
The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions of
the CG Code set out therein, except for CG Code provision A.2.1,
throughout the period from the Listing Date up to the date of this
report.

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the roles of the chairman and the chief executive
of the Company should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and the chief executive of the Company should be clearly
established and set out in writing.

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer (“CEQ”)
of the Company are not separated and are performed by the
same individual. Mr. Liu Jia (“Mr. Liu”) acted as both the chairman
and the CEO since the Listing Date, and accordingly, there is no
written terms setting out the division of responsibilities between
the chairman and chief executive. Since Mr. Liu has a wealth of
experience in real estate investment, operations and investment
projects and has been working for various subsidiaries of China
Everbright Group since 1991, our Directors consider that vesting the
roles of the chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Company in
Mr. Liu is beneficial to the management and business development
of the Group and will provide strong and consistent leadership to the
Group.

As the Board currently comprises two executive Directors (including
Mr. Liu), two non-executive Directors and four independent
non-executive Directors and therefore our Directors are of the view
that there is a fairly strong independence element in its composition.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry with each of the Directors, the Company has received
confirmations from all Directors that they have complied with the
required standards as set out in the code of conduct and the Model
Code since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and should take decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board of the Company currently comprises the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jia (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lin Zimin

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Tse Hang Mui
Mr. Li Yinzhong

Independent Non-executive Directors(’

Mr. Tsoi David

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham
Mr. Lee Jor Hung

Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXEORS (HE)

Note:

(1) Appointment became effective on 16 January 2018.

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 16 to 27 of the Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2018.

There are no relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the
Board.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

The Board meets regularly and, involving active participation,
either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors. Under code provision A.1.1 of the CG
Code, the Board shall meet regularly and at least four times a year
at approximately quarterly intervals. During the reporting period, 4
Board meetings and 1 general meetings were held.

The Directors’ attendance of the Board meetings and general
meetings during the reporting period is set out as follows:

Name of Directors

EEpn

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Liu Jia BlmhaE
Mr. Lin Zimin MEG KL
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. Tse Hang Mui B+
Mr. Li Yinzhong IR EAE
Independent Non-executive Directors BIEHITES
Mr. Tsoi David BRMERE
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham AEHEE
Mr. Lee Jor Hung TR E
Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling FEB T+
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The Company is obliged to comply with the CG Code and will
take appropriate arrangements for holding at least 4 regular
Board meetings as well as a meeting between the Chairman and
non-executive Directors (including Independent non-executive
directors) in the forthcoming year.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The Company does not segregate the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer and Mr. Liu Jia currently holds
both positions, as explained in the paragraph headed “Corporate
Governance Practices” in this report.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period from Listing Date up to 31 December 2018, the
Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board with one
of whom possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors) of the Company are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the current term.

The Company’s articles of association (“Articles of Association”)
provides that all Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be
subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.
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Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable
business experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board
for its efficient and effective functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and
providing a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent
judgement on corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken
against Directors arising out of corporate activities. The insurance
coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the
first occasion on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the reporting period, that all
Directors had participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Company has distributed materials and updated information
on the latest developments in the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements during the reporting period.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory
updates have been provided to the Directors for their reference and
studying.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Investment Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of reference of
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr Li
Yinzhong, Non-executive Director, Mr Tsoi David, Independent Non-
executive Director, and Mr Shek Lai Him Abraham, Independent
Non-executive Director. Mr Tsoi David is the chairman of the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee has held 2 meetings during the reporting
period. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
and the Company’s external auditors (including but not limited to)
the Company’s accounting principles and practices, important
accounting estimates and matters, and the external auditor’s audit
plan; has reviewed and discussed the financial report matters,
including review of the final audited financial results for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and unaudited interim financial results as
of 30 June 2018. To ensure the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control functions, the Audit Committee
has reviewed, discussed and monitored the works of risk
management and internal control in year 2018.
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The committee members’ attendance of the Audit Committee during
the reporting period is set out as follows:

Mr Tsoi David (Chairman) BERMRE (L)
Mr Li Yinzhong TRPEE
Mr Shek Lai Him Abraham Ve kSt

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main
duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems, effectiveness of the internal audit
function, scope of audit and appointment of external auditors,
and arrangements to enable employees of the Company to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal
control or other matters of the Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr Liu Jia, Executive Director, Mr Lee Jor Hung, Independent
Non-executive Director, and Ms Yu Pauline Wah Ling, Independent
Non-executive Director. Mr Lee Jor Hung is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee has held 1 meeting during the
reporting period. The Remuneration Committee has reviewed
the proposal on meetings allowances for the each of the Board
committees; reviewed the remuneration packages of individual
executives, non-executives directors and members of senior
management; discussed and made recommendation to the Board of
Directors to adopt the remuneration policy. The aforesaid approved
matters and review were reported and recommended to the Board.
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EXEORS (HE)

The committee members’ attendance of the Remuneration
Committee during the reporting period is set out as follows:

Mr. Lee Jor Hung (Chairman) TR E (EE)
Mr. Liu Jia e R e
Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling FERLL

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of
no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The
primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management; and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no
Director or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/
her own remuneration.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management by bands for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

N E R HE R

o

FHEZEEX
SR

\

Attendance/Number of meetings
during the reporting period
HEAE, REEHEHETEIRK
1/1

1/1

11

FHZEeNBEBETL TERNERE

=
BEERRSEET LS REEENT M
CEREELSMEEENH MK
RERBETRILAESTSRLEZ
VAR 5k 5% 55 3 B IBKOSR S A 48 ) E BB A
EZzRF HMARIYEBEFHHEMHE
AT2EBEARS HM -

RIELEEGTEZFANEEBASE -
HZE2018F12A31HILEE  afhERE
AERNFMEEFBHOT

Number of individuals

A
Exceeding RMB1,000,000 Hid A KR #1,000,0005T 2
Not exceeding RMB1,000,000 B A R #1,000,0007T 1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXRECRS ()

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr Lin Zimin, Executive Director, Mr Shek Lai Him Abraham,
Independent Non-executive Director, and Mr Lee Jor Hung,
Independent Non-executive Director. Mr Shek Lai Him Abraham is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee has held 1 meeting during the reporting
period. The Nomination Committee had reviewed the structure,
size and composition (including the sexual, skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board and assessed the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, discussed and made
recommendation to the board of Directors to adopt the nomination
policy and the re-election of all retiring directors at the forthcoming
2019 annual general meeting of the Company. The aforesaid
approved matters and review were reported and recommended to
the Board.

The committee members’ attendance of the Nomination Committee
during the reporting period is set out as follows:

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham (Chairman) A& &% & (/)
Mr. Lin Zimin MEBEE
Mr. Lee Jor Hung TR E

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal
duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of Directors, making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors.
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Attendance/Number of meetings
during the reporting period
HERE, MNREHEBITEEIH
1/1

1/1

1/1
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience etc. The
Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary,
and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee consists of five members, two Executive
Directors namely Mr Liu Jia and Mr Lin Zimin and three Independent
Non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lee Jor Hung, Mr Tsoi David
and Ms Yu Pauline Wah Ling. Mr Liu Jia is the chairman of the
Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee has held 1 meeting during the reporting
period. The Investment Committee reviewed and evaluated the
company’s investment portfolio and its performance, as well as
discussed and recommended to the Board to modify the Investment
Committee’s authority to approve investment projects.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXRECRS ()

The committee members’ attendance of the Investment Committee
during the reporting period is set out as follows:

Mr. Liu Jia (Chairman) BFmEE(FEFE)

Mr. Lin Zimin MEBEE
Mr. Lee Jor Hung TR E
Mr. Tsoi David BRMERE
Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling FEKL L+

The principal duties of the Investment Committee include reviewing
and evaluating any investment projects proposed by the Company,
making recommendations to the Board on such investment project,
and also reviewing the annual investment plan of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and Written
Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

REZBEXNER®RSE

ZIENE

HIFE] &Y B R

Attendance/Number of meetings
during the reporting period
HEAS, REEHEHETEIRK
11

11

11

11

11
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EXEBRS(E)

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness and
conducts a review on an annual basis. Such systems are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including project
management, sales and leasing, financial reporting, human
resources and information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

All divisions/departments conducted internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the business of
the Group and various aspects including key operational and
financial processes, regulatory compliance and information security.
Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that control
policies are properly complied with by each division/department.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXRECRS ()

The management, in coordination with division/department heads,
assessed the likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans,
and monitor the risk management progress, and reported to the
Audit Committee and the Board on all findings and the effectiveness
of the systems.

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems for the period from the Listing Date and up to the
date of this report.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, including the financial, operational
and compliance controls, for the year ended 31 December 2018,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the financial reporting and staff
qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees
of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides
a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers, senior
management and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding to
enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.

The Company does not have an internal audit function to carry out
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of its risk
management and internal control systems. The risk management
and internal controls are self-assessed by the management and
reviewed by the Board on an on-going basis.
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EXEBRS(E)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 91 to 97.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of the
Company in respect of audit services and review and other services
for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to RMB1.06 million
and RMB0.35 million respectively.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY

The joint company secretaries of the Company are Mr. Lee Wai
Kwong and Ms. Ho Wing Tsz Wendy. Ms. Ho Wing Tsz Wendy, an
executive director of corporate services at Tricor Services Limited (an
external service provider) who fulfils the qualification requirements
laid down in the Listing Rules and the primary contact at the
Company is Mr. Lee Wai Kwong.

Ms. Ho Wing Tsz Wendy has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint

company secretary on corporate governance and board practices
and matters.
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EXRECRS ()

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the following board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”).

The Board recognizes the benefit of having a diverse Board to
enhance the quality of its performance. A diverse Board includes
and makes good use of differences in the skills, industry knowledge
and experience, education, background and other qualities of the
Directors and does not discriminate on the ground of race, age,
gender, culture or religious belief.

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for reviewing and
reporting to the Board in relation to the Board diversity.

All the Board appointments will be considered by the Nomination
Committee and recommended to the Board for formal approval
based on the diversity perspectives.

Selection of candidates for Board appointment will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural/educational and professional background, skills and
experience.

The ultimate decision will be based on merit against objective criteria
and contribution that the candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board will review and monitor from time to time the
implementation of Board Diversity Policy to ensure its effectiveness
and will at appropriate time set measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board.
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BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted the following board nomination policy (the

“Board Nomination Policy”).

Selection Criteria

The factor listed below shall be considered by the Nomination

Committee in selecting the candidates for directors:

° character and integrity;

° achievements and professional experience that is beneficial to

the development of the Company;

° professional experience in real estate operations and other

related fields;

o potential time commitment;

board diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age (18 years old or above), cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service;

independence of the candidates (if applicable); and

the term of service that the candidates have served for the re-
appointment of the Independent Non-executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

TEEBRSE(E)

Nomination Procedures EERF

A. Nomination by the Nomination Committee A. HIERZEERESR

e The Nomination Committee shall review the structure, sizeand o IEEZEZEeEBEZLSFRTESTS
composition (including the skills, professional qualification, HEE ABRAK(BERRE - F
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and XEWR MBLRKRI®E)  WHE
make recommendation on any proposed change to the Board E=Y = /NI O R/NEET -3 S )
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. EESFHNEHIRLER °

e The Nomination Committee can be assisted by external e EMEBEERIE AN - ] 48 B I 36 #
agencies and/or consultants in identifying potential candidates. BRSERHE -

o The Nomination Committee may seek advice from the Board e MEEELZATRINESTNIERES
members in recommending candidates or nominate other TR O RBZECTMESTTRK
candidates who are not nominated by the Board members in EFAERHEEAR IREELE®
appointing additional Directors or filling Board vacancies. A BITIRBWIEBRESTZKELR

BHE A AE o

e  The Nomination Committee shall refer to the “Selection o IELZESFE2X-E[FHEEL]  #
Criteria” to determine whether the proposed candidates are TEZFAEZELAERKEEAK A
eligible and suitable to become Directors of the Company ARBIESZ  UHkRAEFGIEM
and provide advice to the Board in this regard for the Board BER NUHEEgEZRMEL TR
to consider approving the appointment of the proposed FABAEARAESTHHEBEEARK
candidates as the Company’s Directors or recommending RAEGLEREKBANRES -
the proposed candidates to be elected as the Company’s
Directors in the General Meeting.

B. Nomination by the Shareholders B. HBRERESR

Shareholders may nominate candidates for election of the
Company’s Directors in accordance to the applicable rules of the
Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of the Company. The
specific procedures are set out in the “Procedures for Shareholders
to Propose a Person for Election as a Director” as prepared and
adopted by the Company from time to time.

The Nomination Committee is authorized by the Board to review
this policy from time to time to ensure its effectiveness and to give
advice to the Board on the proposed amendments for the Board’s
approval as necessary.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the following dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”).

The Board will consider the following factors when considering the
proposed dividend payment and determining its amount:

(1)

(7

the current and future funding needs of the Company for
operations and business development;

the market conditions from time to time;

the Company's liquidity and financial position;

the requirement of the Company's Articles of Association
and the relevant laws, regulations and rules applicable to the

Company;

any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company
is bound;

the solvency requirements of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and

any other circumstances that the Board considers relevant.

The Board will review, discuss and revise the Dividend Policy in
accordance with the Company’s profit, financial needs and other
factors from time to time.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXEBRS(E)

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant
to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites
of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholders of the Company should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the laws of the Cayman Islands and where
applicable, the Company’s articles of association, for convening a
general meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders of the Company should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the laws of the Cayman Islands and where
applicable, the Company’s articles of association, for circulating a
resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,

shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1501, 15th Floor, Malaysia Building, 50
Gloucester Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong (For the
attention of the Joint Company Secretary)

(with effect from 1 May 2019, the address will be
changed to Room 1302, 13th Floor, Bank of East Asia
Harbour View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong) (For the attention of the Joint Company
Secretary)

(852) 2545 5256

inquiry@ebgca.com.hk

Fax:
Email:

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance and
strategies. The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going
dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through annual
general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to
meet shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Pursuant to special resolutions of all shareholders of the Company
passed on 15 December 2017, the amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company were
adopted with effect from the Listing Date, copy of which is available
on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT

RR  TBRELBRS

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report 2018 (the
“Report”) of Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”)
has been prepared in accordance to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Main
Board Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. This is the second
annual ESG report published by the Group, covering the operations
of our headquarters in Hong Kong and property management
services in Chengdu from the Listing Date to 31 December 2018
(the “reporting period”), which discloses information on the Group’s
management approach and performance of relevant significant
environmental and social issues."23 The Board has reviewed and
approved the Report.

In the past year, the Group has continued to attach great importance
to environmental and social responsibility work, and has taken the
responsibility of promoting the Sustainable Development Goals
(“SDGs”) of the United Nations. The SDGs have been integrated
into the Group’s management strategies, as we strive to implement
the concept of sustainable development into every part of our
operations.

We welcome valuable comments and suggestions from all sectors
on this Report as well as our ESG performance. If you have any
comments, please contact us by email at inquiry@ebgca.com.hk.

1 Data of contractors and tenants are not reflected in this Report;

2 Apart from integral numbers, all data in this Report are rounded to two
decimal places; and

3 All intensity data in this Report cover our property management services
in Chengdu only. All intensities are calculated per sgq.m. of managed gross
floor area (“GFA”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELSRS (8)

ENVIRONMENT
Prioritised SDGs:

e

The Group proactively promotes sustainable development and
environmental protection in our daily operations.

We have formulated Green Office Guidelines and Water Resources
Management Guidelines to incorporate environmental protection
initiatives into all areas of our business operations, including
building management, facility operations and maintenance. We are
committed to minimising our environmental impacts on greenhouse
gas emissions, energy use, water use and waste disposal.

We regularly carry out environmental protection measures covering
the repair and maintenance of property facilities and equipment,
as well as during construction. We have also strengthened our
environmental auditing efforts through conducting weekly safety and
sanitation inspections to minimise pollution.

In addition, the Group strives to mobilise all employees to get
involved in environmental protection activities. Apart from listening
to employees’ suggestions through various channels, we also
offer training courses and workshops on environmental protection
to our employees and encourage them to participate in different
environmental protection projects. Our environmental management
initiatives were also extended to other stakeholders through
implementing environmental protection programmes to promote
environmental awareness amongst our tenants and all building
users.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELBRS (8)

During the reporting period, the Group did not violate any relevant
environmental regulations, nor was it subject to any fines or charge.

Case Story: Promoting Environmental Awareness of All
Personnel

The Group held a number of activities in the past year to promote
employees’ environmental awareness and healthy lifestyle.
Leveraging the opportunities of “22 April” Earth Day and “5 June”
World Environment Day for promoting energy and emission
reduction, we held two environmental public engagement campaigns
at the lobby of Chengdu Everbright Finance Centre and the plaza of
Everbright International Mansion. The theme of the events was to
promote environmental knowledge, provoke and raise employees’
awareness on ecological and environmental protection. We also
made brochures and displayed banners of “Green Ambassador”,
and called on the staff of our office tenants and the public to actively
participate in environmental protection quizzes.

Greenhouse Gas and Air Emissions Management

To accurately record the greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions
during operation, the Group adopted the calculation method
listed in Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or
Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition) compiled by the
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and Environmental
Protection Department of Hong Kong, providing stakeholders with
comprehensive and reliable data concerning the type, amount and
scope of our greenhouse gas emissions.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELSRS (8)

GHG Emissions in 2018 2018FBRERBHEME
GHG Emissions Intensity (tCO2e/
Emissions (tCO.e) | sq.m. of managed GFA)
HHE | RERBIREE(M_-_StmEE
(M-F{tmEE) | FHAREEEEER)
Direct GHG Emissions (Scope 1)
BEEAERBYME (K —) 14.52
Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2)
EREELAERERNE(BE ) 1,395.26 o
14
Other Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 3)
HiEZEAEREHERE(HE= 8,533.49
Total GHG Emissions
BEREHENEE 9,943.27
Notes: fsE -

(1) Emission factor for electricity purchased in Scope 2 is referenced to
the latest available emission data released by The Hongkong Electric
Company Limited and the Regional Baseline Grid Emission Factor in China
2011-2012 issued by the National Development and Reform Commission

(NDRC) of the PRC;

(2)  The Scope 3 GHG emissions include paper waste disposal, water
consumption and air travel (the relevant GHG emissions were calculated by
the International Civil Aviation Organisation Carbon Emissions Calculator).

Air Emissions in 2018

(1) BB _ABEENNERRENZ2EEHE
EREERARAMOKIMFRRBEN K
B B 2R 3 2k & % i 9€2011 AN 20124F
FEESEATY ZE(CHRERET):

@ RBREREHNE@EBEZ)EEEARES .
KRB TR#ZR(EEBREREHR
VABIRR R /A B a0 Bk B BT B RR AT HASH) -

2018F ERSERYHEHE

Emissions(g)
BEHE(R)

Particulate Matter (PM)
LR R 101.75
Sulphur Oxides (SO )
mEL? 37.00
Nitrogen Oxides (NO )
AG1LY 1,381.95
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELBRS (8)

Notes:

(1) Emissions include gasoline consumption of business vehicles in Chengdu
only;

(2)  The calculation method and emission factor are referenced to the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of the Stock Exchange.

Energy Use

As the operation of the Group is mainly conducted in offices, efficient
use of energy is one of our key environmental issues. In this regard,
we actively implement various energy saving and emission reduction
measures according to our Green Office Guidelines, including the
installation of energy metering systems to closely monitor energy
consumption, which results in improved energy efficiency and
subsequently reduced GHG emissions. We also maximise the
use of natural light in our offices and maintain the average office
temperature between 24°C and 26°C in summer time to reduce
unnecessary use of electricity for lighting and air-conditioning.

To further conserve energy, the Group encourages employees to
start with their own habits, such as switching computers to energy
saving mode, switching off computers, printers, and other electrical
appliances at the end of working day, and unplugging all electrical
devices prior to long holidays.

Direct Energy Consumption in 2018

GER

(1) BEREBRBERE DTS E WA TRIEFE

@ FEIERFREBTIZ2BEZACGRER
REPEERRERES -

BEIR & F

HRAEBENELTZEMATET
ERNARERERM-—BEZMNRIER
A Bl HPBRBHLRAERRFRIE
5) BREMESIEMEREERE 8%
RRERAERB AT Y BT ERHE R
B EEREARERFEBRT - FKE
BETREERBHERE -BHATERLE
EEERARN YHEEFTHEKHR
NRENFHENREERFAERK24E26
BB WRIBRARERAETSZHNE
BEHAE °

RE—FHOER  AEEBE TR
FE)EME MBALSERARE
FEERER RIBERKHARES
B TEDHE R HibERE - KRR RE A
BIRBHENEIR -

2018 F HIERER MR

Consumption (kWh) | Intensity (kWh/sq.m. of managed GFA)
HAMEE (TRE) BE(TRE FHREERZEEE)

Electricity
ESWa) 2,648,288.00 37.26
Consumption (L) Intensity (L/sq. m. of managed GFA)
HMEE(H) REH FHREEEEER)

Gasoline
i 2,517.33 0.04
Note: B3E -

(1) There was no direct gasoline consumption by the Hong Kong headquarters
during the reporting period.

(1) BREEDRERNBESHRNERER TH -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELSRS (8)

Water Resources Management

The Group’s Water Management Guidelines advocate a principle of
sustainable water usage, including the use of separate drainage and
sewerage systems, and ensures that the discharged wastewater
comply with local emissions standards. The guidelines also provide
a series of water saving measures to reduce water consumption and
improve water efficiency.

To properly manage water resources, all our project companies
in Chengdu participated in the Water Conservation Conference
organised by the Chengdu Municipal Water Conservation Office.
Each operating unit was required to plan for the use of water by
quarter in accordance with the planned usage released by the
Water Conservation Office, and report the “Annual Water Use Plan
by Quarter” to the Water Conservation Office. During the reporting
period, we successfully achieved our water use goals, and raised
our employees’ awareness in cherishing water resources.

We believe that the proper maintenance of our water supply system
can not only provide our users with high-quality drinking water,
but also prevent water wastage. Hence, we established the Repair
and Maintenance Guidelines and conducted regular cleaning and
water quality tests of the water supply system, as well as regular
maintenance of drainage system and timely repair when leakage
is found. Prior to the rainy season in 2018, we conducted a
comprehensive inspection of the drainage systems of our properties
to ensure that they were in intact condition to create a safe and
healthy living environment.

During the reporting period, all wastewater was discharged to
designated sewers in accordance with local regulations and no

violations occurred.

Water Consumption in 2018
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2018 XK E

Water Consumption (L)
FEXE(H)

Water Consumption Intensity
(L/sg.m. of managed GFA)
RABE(H FHAREEEEEE)

Water
7K 18,020

0.25
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELBRS (8)

Note:

Water usage in the Hong Kong headquarters is managed by the building
where the office is located. As the managerial department cannot provide
data or metered record on water use for individual tenants, data of water
consumption in our Hong Kong headquarters is not included in this
Report.

Resources and Waste Management

The Group upholds the 3R concept “reduce, reuse and recycle” as
the principle of resources consumption, and has persisted in making
systematic records on material usage. Since our operation is mainly
conducted in offices, paper conservation has become our key
resource conservation goal. The Group’s Green Office Guidelines
encourage double-sided printing, paper recycling and using
environment-friendly paper in printing important documents such as
annual and interim reports. We also encourage employees to use
electronic files in lieu of hard copies to reduce paper consumption.

For waste that cannot be avoided, we strive to reuse and recycle the
relevant supplies and materials as much as possible. To encourage
employees’ participation in recycling, the Group has posted tips and
placed recycling bags and recycling bins to facilitate the collection
of recyclable and reusable waste such as paper. The Green Office
Guidelines stipulate that all general waste and recycled paper should
be collected by the building management and handled by dedicated
waste collectors to prevent illegal dumping of waste. During the
reporting period, a total of 0.52 tonnes of papers were recycled.

Waste Generation in 2018
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018 FERMELE

Waste Generation (kg)

Waste Generation Intensity
(kg/sg.m. of managed GFA)
BEERVELERE

BEYEEXEE(AT) (DR /FAKEBREZELERE)
Non-hazardous Waste
mEREEY 499.00 0.01
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELSRS (8)

SOCIAL
Prioritised SDGs:

Welfare and Safeguards

The Group believes that human resources are crucial to our
long-term development. To this end, we strive to provide employees
with a fair, friendly and competitive working environment which is
free from any forms of child labour or forced labour.

The Employee Management Regulation of the Group provides
clear guidance on the working environment, compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, other benefits and welfare, training and development and
occupational health and safety for our employees. To provide equal
and diversified career opportunities, we have also formulated the
Policy on Preventing Discriminations, Harassments and Upholding
Equal Opportunities. Such policy safeguards employees from
discrimination, harassment and vilification due to gender, disability,
family status, marital status, race, etc. The policy indicates clear
reporting and investigating procedures, with dedicated anonymous
reporting email account and hotline set up for employees.

To recruit and retain talents, the Group offers competitive
remuneration packages to our employees. Apart from basic
monthly salary, year-end bonus is rewarded to employees with
excellent performance. The Group regularly reviews its policies on
remuneration and welfare, and makes annual adjustments based on
year-end assessment result of employees, business performance
of the Group and the salary level of industry. We strive to provide
decent employee welfares including medical insurance, paid
annual leave, maternity/paternity leave, examination leave, overtime
allowance, red pocket for birthday, etc. The Group also hosts
various social activities to reinforce social interaction and friendship
amongst employees, thus reinforcing team cohesion.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELBRS (8)

During the reporting period, there were no violations of laws or
regulations on labour standards, child labour or forced labour.

Training and Development

We believe that human resources development is of utmost
importance to corporate strategic management, as unleashing
the potential of every employee aligns well with the long-term
development of a business. In this regard, we spare no effort in
responding to the concerns and demands of employees in training,
promotion, internal transfer, remuneration, etc. The Employee
Management Regulation of the Group clearly delineates our
mechanism in training, assessment and promotion, as well as the
on-the-job training requirements for employees at all levels. We
have provided various vocational trainings to employees every
month including business management, information technology,
anti-corruption, first-aid, etc., and collected feedbacks and
recommendations from employees regularly.

Apart from internal training within the Group, we also encourage
employees of all grades to take part in external training and
continuing education to continuously enhance their competency,
knowledge and qualification. An employee completing any self-
learning module or attaining any diploma or qualification related to
the businesses of the Group may submit a copy of proof which can
serve as a reference in year-end assessment, internal transfer and
promotion arrangements. During the reporting period, directors
and selected personnel of the Group participated in the Seminar on
Corporate Governance and Monitoring Ordinance Renewal 2018
hosted by an external party, where issues related to corporate
governance and compliance with regulations were discussed.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELSRS (8)

Health and Safety

The Group understands that safeguarding the health and safety
of employees is an essential part of its human resources strategy.
In this connection, we have established the Occupational Health
Management Policy. Upholding the “Safety First” principle, we
strive to offer a safe working environment to our employees. We
provide employees with vocational safety training every month, with
topics covering maintenance and repair of property equipment,
power shortage contingency measures, lift entrapment contingency
measures, flood control measures in summer, contingency
measures in car park during flooding, etc.

As a property management company, we take serious responsibility
of securing the safety of our tenants and the public. The Group has
set up the Signage Management Guideline which aims to enhance
management of various signage, such as control on fire safety,
safety and guidance, in public areas of the buildings (e.g. corridors
and exterior walls, etc.). The guideline provides detailed stipulations
on the use of signage in various high-risk operations or workplaces.
For instance, corresponding safety signs should be placed during
regular maintenance of elevators, aloft work or other construction
and maintenance works, in order to reduce the risk of industrial
accidents.

Moreover, to ensure fire safety of our properties, we have
established the “Responsibility Pledge on Property Security and
Fire Safety Mechanism”, requiring relevant property users to strictly
comply with the prevailing national fire safety management laws and
regulations, and tenants to implement related guidelines based on
their characteristics. We also strive to provide a healthy environment
for employees, visitors and the public by promoting the Smoke-free
Workspace Policy at our offices and actively encourage tenants to
implement such policy.

During the reporting period, we had no violations of laws or

regulations pertaining to health and safety matters in the workplace
or related to our services.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELBRS (8)

Case Story: Sailing through Natural Disasters with Excellent
Management

In the evening of 1 July 2018, Chengdu was attacked by heavy
rainstorm, in which the extreme weather triggered sudden power
cuts at Chengdu Everbright Finance Centre and Chengdu Everbright
International Mansion, two premises under the Group. Personnel
on duty took immediate measures to enact the contingency plan for
power outage and turned on the emergency power supply, which
resumed the power supply of elevators and public areas to ensure
safety of clients. Meanwhile, they maintained close liaison with
clients to comfort them and no one was injured. With the support of
Chengdu Administrative Services Centre, the responsible personnel
assisted engineers from Power Supply Bureau to repair and test the
power system of the building. Under the efforts of various parties,
power supply was resumed on the same day, minimising impacts to
business operation and ensuring safety of clients.

Supplier Management

Due to the nature of the business of the Group, the Group
does not have any major supplier. The Group has maintained a
systematic guideline in selecting and managing suppliers, with
the aim to reduce the risk and cost of procurement as well as
to develop sustainable partners. Our suppliers primarily provide
us with construction materials, office supplies, labour protection
supplies, mechanical and electrical equipment, etc. The Group has
formed a procurement team to set up supplier profiles and record
their product supplied. In addition, our cost audit team, finance
department, engineering department and inventory team also carry
out regular reviews, inspections and assessments for suppliers in
accordance with the Group’s Management Guidelines on Supplier
Selection and Evaluation. In June every year, we conduct, with
reference to the Evaluation Form of Supplier Management, an overall
evaluation to our suppliers by assessing areas including product
quality, environmental and social compliance, etc. Suppliers are
classified into five grades, namely, A, B, C, D, and E, based on their
assessment result. Rewards or penalties are given to suppliers of
corresponding grades to ensure that we always cooperate with the
best suppliers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELSRS (8)

Anti-Corruption

Maintaining business integrity is one of our primary success factors.
All directors and employees must uphold integrity and business
ethics when doing their work. The Group strictly follows relevant
regulations, such as the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC and
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong, and established
clear guidelines on corruption prevention, as well as requiring strict
adherence by all grades of employees in our daily operation.

All employees should comply with the Group’s Code of Conduct,
which includes policies on the prevention of corruption, fraud,
bribery, extortion, money laundering and any other unfair or unethical
conducts. Employees of the Group shall never offer or accept gifts or
cash (or cash equivalents), nor may the family members or persons
of close relationship with employees accept cash or gifts from
business partners having conflict of interest with the Group. The
Group also sets up an Anti-Corruption and Reporting Mechanism
led by the Board of Directors, including a dedicated reporting email
address and hotline. We require our clients to sign the Anti-Business
Corruption Agreement as part of the property management services
agreement or leasing contract. As a listed company, our employees
participated in an anti-corruption talk organised by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption in this year, of which the contents
included anti-corruption regulations, common traps of corruption,
etc.

During the reporting period, the Group had no experience in

any cases nor violations of laws and regulations related to
anti-corruption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELBRS (8)

Community Investment

The Group proactively engages in corporate social responsibility,
and strives to understand the needs of local community by giving
back to and serving the society. We have formulated the Community
and Philanthropy Policy, and through charitable donations and
encouraging our employees to devote to community services and
volunteering work, we take part in issues that are of concern, bring
positive energy to the community and enhance social cohesion.

Case Story: The Group received President’s Award from The
Community Chest of Hong Kong

In the past year, the Group proactively echoed with the charitable
fund-raising activities of The Community Chest. One million HKD
were raised to support the charitable activities of the organisation
and the Group was presented with “President’s Award” by The
Community Chest. Donations to The Community Chest will be used
to support the social welfare services provided by over 160 member
social welfare agencies which can reach over 2 million people in
need. In the future, the Group will continue the social contributions
in an enthusiastic manner for the betterment of community.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

The Stock Exchange’s ESG Reporting Guide

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPls

TEHE B

H- - —REER
BREXRER

BXP(RE HERELGHEEFS DA
e

Description
4 aft

A. Environment &5

Aspect A1: Emissions BHA1 : il

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
references/Explanation
EEEMGSHE A A

data.

BEU AR S AR B R R BUE -

General Information on: Environment
Disclosure o .
—REE (a) the policies; and We do not hold relevant policy as our
. ) ) operation would not cause significant
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations| . . . .
o _ _ impact on air emissions, discharges
that have a significant impact on the issuer . )
into land, and generation of hazardous
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, waste.
discharges into water and land, and generation of There are no laws and regulations that
hazardous and non-hazardous waste. have a significant impact on the Group
BEBERIMRERBIN - MK E LB relating to air and greenhouse gas
EENETREEDNELASY L . :
emissions, discharges into water and
@ HE: R land, and generation of hazardous and
- \ non-hazardous waste.
b)) BFHETABEARENHEBEEZLMR| @
1
. MR AEENEBEHEEL RS RE
R R R BER I - ML sEsRE
EREEVES - R ESFTHE
BAEY BUER o
REB W EABRERIRZREBH
o RKKR BB  AERE
EREVHELESOHEBEZNR
DI EBREATZE -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Environment — Greenhouse Gas and

Air Emissions Management
RE—RERBLRBEERER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BRE MBRELCHRS ()

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General

Disclosures and

KPIs
FTEEHE B
H- - —REER
BARENERE

Description

i

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
references/Explanation

FRAEHRH A A

KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) Environment — Greenhouse Gas and
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Air Emissions Management
production volume, per facility). RE - AERBEEAEHENRER
BERBAME (AEAE) R (ER)ZE
NEBES®BM  FERMTHE) -

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) During the reporting period, the Group
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of did not produce any hazardous waste.
production volume, per facility). RBEBMA  NEERBEE M
ELAREREEYMEAE (U8 M(NER)® mﬁ%ﬁnhﬁﬁﬁﬁ@WO
F(MABESEN -  BHERBTHE) °

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) Environment — Resources and Waste
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of Management
production volume, per facility). RE —BRAKEYER
EABRTREEDES (AWEE)R(ER)E
E(WMABESEN  BERETE) -

KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and Environment

results achieved.

WA KM ENREERAERR

We began to record our environmental
data in detail this year, to allow for
meaningful comparisons of data over
time.

I 45

BN A FE I8 SR FBEERIER
Ak EHEBEBBARAEARE
EHLLE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPIs
FTEEHE B
H- - —REER
BRENER

KPI A1.6

Description

i

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and results
achieved.
HEBEERBEREMN S A
WiEERAERR -

CREELEE

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
references/Explanation

FREH R HE A

Environment — Resources and Waste
Management

Our daily office operations do not
involve generation of hazardous
waste. Therefore, no specific reduction
initiative is in place.
RBE—BARKEDERE

KRB ERAEZEETINAE
BEEYMES -Bitt BT LA
ST ELS S MEME o

Aspect A2: Use of

Resources EMHA2 : EREH

General
Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERER(BIERIR - KK E MM RME) &)
ﬁ o

Environment
IRIE

KPI A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or ail) in total (kWh in *000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

RERES>NEELR /SHELR(WE - A%
HERE(ATETRKE) REE (MG E
BB  BERKMETE) o

Environment — Energy Use
RIE —BLIREHA

KPI A2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per

unit of production volume, per facility).

%ﬁ*i&MFqut? B BIEF
#) -

B ET

Environment — Water Resources
Management

RIE—KEREE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BRE MBRELCHRS ()

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General

Disclosures and

KPIs
FTEEHE B
H- - —REER
BARENERE

Description
iR

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
references/Explanation

FRAEHRH A A

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency in initiatives and | Environment — Energy Use

results achieved. .

Vi it AL B Pl K S S B R PR B o We bggan tg re.cord our environmental
data in detail this year, to allow for
meaningful comparisons of data over
time.

B — LR
BN ARFERBEIRBEIEEF
M EHEBEBERRAIEER
BHELE o
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing | Environment — Water Resources
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency Management

initiatives and results achieved. ) . )

Wyt S B OB L TS R - LA R 2 T A Water for.ogr office use is gbtamed

KB R R R - from mun|o|pla| wa’Fer supplies. There
are no associated issues regarding
water sourcing.

RIE—KERER
AEEMAXRESAKEERE TR
HKREH HMEEFSERKRLE
BB EBEAMMERE -

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products | Our operations do not involve the use

(in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced.

B mAABREMENES (AMETE) R(nE
R)BEEBMNEE -

of packaging material.
BAOEBLEE RS RBEMHEY
A -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPIs

TEHE - [E
H- - —REER
BRENER

Description
iR

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
references/Explanation

FRAEHRH A A

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources EHAS : BER XAER

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact

Disclosure on the environment and natural resources.

—REE BIEBETAHRERRABERERNERZEHNK
/‘;;ﬁ o

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities

on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.

B ERTHHRERRAERNERAZERD
KEBEEBTENITE -

The Group’s business activities mainly
comprise office operations, which will
not cause significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.
Therefore, no relevant policy is in
place.

ENRHRFMNEBLEE  RMANER
REEBETEHRBERRAZIREK
BATE - Bt RFRAHEBER

poras

Eﬁ o

Employment and Labour Practices {Ef§ % T &R

Aspect B1: Employment EEB1 : &%

General
Disclosure

— R E

Information on:
(@  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

EHFMEEE BEREA IERH R

H TE#e ok RESUREMAFBR

A

@ HE: K

b) BFTHETABEATENHEBERLR
1

B -

Social

There are no laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion,
working hours, rest periods,

equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.
e

AEBEYEEBGTMEEE  HE
RE TERE B FEH
g Zalt RIERAREAFS
Ko 4@ M) #) FE B DR 2 M AR ) 8 H A X
BEAFE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL,

SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued])

BRE MBRELCHRS ()

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPIs

TEHE - [E

" —REER
BRENER

Aspect B2: Health

Description

ot
and Safety EEB2 : @FEHEZ2E

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
references/Explanation

FRAEHRH A A

General
Disclosure

— R E

Information on:
the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the

issuer relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

FARHZ 2 TERRERREREEREBE MR
B

@ BE: X

b)) BFHETABEAFZENHEBAEIRARR
{51

&R o

Social — Health and Safety

There are no laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group
relating to providing a safe working
environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

re —R@ERZR
AEBVEABRERHZE2IIERE
RREBEEBE2BEELEENHEEA
FREBROIBEBRNEATE -

Aspect B3: Develo

pment and Training BHEB3 : % EKkiZ3I

General
Disclosure

— R E

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and

skills for discharging duties at work. Description of

training activities.

Eﬁ%ﬁﬁé%?l#%émﬂ%&&%mﬁ
J{EE im DJ” /é @J

Social — Training and Development
e —BilEER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPIs
I EEE =
— B ER | Description
Eﬁ BENER #at

Aspect B4: Labour Standards [EHB4 : % T %8|

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
references/Explanation

FHREHREMHA

General Information on:
Disclosure (@) the policies; and
—BEE poleies:

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B IEET HEHIZTH -

@ X X

b) BTFTHETABEATENHEBEEZEZERSR
1

BB R -

Social — Welfare and Safeguards

There are no laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group
relating to preventing child and forced
labour.

g — ' F AR

AEBEYEFHEH LE TR
TEOHBEZEBAIEEBKER

B2 98B
A

Operating Practices & &1

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management [EHEB5 : {fEHEEE

General Policies on managing environmental and social risks
Disclosure of the supply chain.
—BREE ERMEENRE T SRR BER

Social — Supplier Management

e —HEBEE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
BRE MBRELCHRS ()

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and

KPIs
TEEE B Relevant Chapter(s) or other

- —MRFEER | Description references/Explanation
BARENER a EREMRHE A

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility BHEB6 : &= mE1E

General Information on: Social — Health and Safety
Disclosure o ) -~ .
—REE (@) the policies; and The Group has not identified material

concerns in its operations regarding
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters in our operation, thus a
dedicated policy is not in place.

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods | There are no laws and regulations

of redress. that have a significant impact on the
EAFMREHERMRBHEREL 2 - ES - 12| Group regarding health and safety,
BEALBEEUARBR A ER advertising, labelling and privacy

e matters relating to the products and
@ X K . .

services provided by the Group.
) MTHBTABEAZENMBEARE| LT —RERZ2

| 7Rt 3 R B AR PR A5 P G
BB - BERETE RS EEEALEE
HMEARE Mk - P m AR
BT -

NEE B W A R AT IR M E MRS
MRFERZE  BES RELLE
EEMNABEEMRIEEBKE

2/ 40
N2

=
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and

KPls
FTEHEHE B Relevant Chapter(s) or other
H - —R#FEER | Description references/Explanation

ERENER i FREHRH A A

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption BHEB7 : R&E55

General Information on: Social — Anti-Corruption
Disclosure . . .
— s (@) the policies; and The Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the

PRC and Hong Kong'’s Prevention of
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations | Bribery Ordinance aim at maintaining

that have a significant impact on the issuer a fair and just society and inflicting
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money | punishments against unscrupulous
laundering. and corruption behaviours. These
BRI IEES  $=  ERh B s laws and regulations are of paramount
importance to the Group’s property
() BxE: & management services.

b) ETYIBTABENYEMNERBRERERH| We established the Code of Conduct
| in accordance with the Anti-Unfair

Competition Law of the PRC and

H &K o Hong Kong’s Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance. The Group believes that
honesty, integrity and fairness are the
important values in business activities.
Employees must be responsible for
their actions.

e —REE

(PEARAMBE R NEEHFIE)
KEBC LGRS £ &
EHERERF  BREEMBE -
BRABELKNITE - EBLERIH K
SEHNNEXEEXHBTOER -

BPRB(PEARAMBERAES
BFE) AN B ECYI LLRERR R B -
HE TTRER) - REBREH
E - REATRBELIHTINEER
EES BINAHBECHITARE

=i

i

i
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SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued])

BRE MBRELCHRS ()

Subject Areas,
Aspects,
General
Disclosures and
KPIs

TEHE - [E

" —REER
BRENER

Community &

Description
iR

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
references/Explanation

FRAEHRH A A

Aspect B8: Community Investment [EEB8 : #H+ERE

General
Disclosure

—RIKE

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take in to
consideration the communities’ interests.

AN EZ2HEXBRREEMEMLRFEMRR
HEBZHGZERT RN EMHEE o

Social — Community Investment

e —HERE
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
SETRS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability on 2 August 2000 and transferred by way of
continuation into the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 15 September 2016 under the Companies
Law. The principal activities of the Group are property leasing and
provision of property management services and sales of properties
held for sale.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
shown under note 13 to the consolidated financial statements. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating profit for the year by
principal activities is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report and note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting of the Company (the “Annual General Meeting”), the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
17 June 2019 to Thursday, 20 June 2019, both dates inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order
to be eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting,
all completed transfer form accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level
22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 14 June 2019.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018 and the discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued])
EEgRE ()

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the management,
the Group complied with the relevant laws and regulations which
constitutes material impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries in all material respects during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporate environment that pays close attention to conserving
natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its impact on the
environment by reducing its electricity consumption and encouraging
recycle of office supplies and other materials. For further details,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
set out on page 49 to 71 of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING THE
GROUP AND KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Group’s financial condition, results and business operations
may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties, some of
which are inherent to the Group’s business and some from external
sources.

Industry Risk

The China property management industry is highly competitive and
fragmented. Competition may intensify as the Group’s competitors
expand their product or service offerings or new competitors enter
the Group’s existing or new markets. If the Group does not compete
successfully against existing and new competitors, the Group may
not be able to renew its existing contracts upon expiration or fail to
win the bid for new projects.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of responding promptly
to market changes within the industry sectors it operates in. Any
failure to interpret market trends properly and adapt its strategy to
such changes accordingly may have a material adverse effect on the
Group’s financial condition, results, and business operations.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued])
EEgRS(E)

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed to
various financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit risks.

The Group’s earnings and financial position may be adversely
affected by movements in foreign exchange rates and interest
rate. In particular, any depreciation in the Group’s bank balances
denominated in foreign currency may affect its net profit. The Group
will closely monitor the relative foreign exchange positions of its
assets and liabilities and allocate its holdings of different currencies
accordingly in order to minimise foreign currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it is unable to obtain
adequate funding to finance its operations. For the management
of liquidity risk, the Group’s management monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that an effective management of relationships
with stakeholders is crucial to resolving issues faced by the Group.
Stakeholders hold the key to the environment in which the Group
operates and its subsequent financial and operating performance.
Thus the effective management of stakeholder relations should be
an essential focus of organizational activity.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 200 of this report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the

Group during the year are set out in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 156 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued])
EEgRE ()

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements
on page 175 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 178 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s distributable reserves
were BMB25,448 thousand.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of movements in the bank and other borrowings of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 18 to
the combined financial information.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association, the laws of Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company is incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION
The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available

to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Company’s
securities.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION & T B R S

For the year ended 31 December 2018, pursuant to the Articles of &, 22018412 A31 B It & - 1B 15 48 &
Association, every Director and other officers shall be entitled tobe ZR A - K EEREM SR E 5 #
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company i st A % & #1175 8 /9 Bk 75 5k 38 7 B 7%
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and sk B [}t /5 B8 B9 H b = B M 7] s 48 B =k 3|
expenses which they may incur or sustain in or about the execution HBHEFTETE - KA - X - B8 - 8%
of the duties of their duty, or supposed duty in their respective KEH AR INEETESERE
office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged R Bttt & FERIEZE - A2 7B 5ot
appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential legal actions ¥ EE RSB ENBEE ZEFATH

against its Directors and officers. KRBEEORR
DIRECTORS =

The Board currently consists of the following eight Directors: SEeHAAN T (LESFAK
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. LIU Jia (Chairman & CEO) R (EEFTHAEZ)
Mr. LIN Zimin MEH K&
Non-executive Directors FHITEE

Ms. TSE Hang Mui WA EZ L

Mr. LI Yinzhong £

Independent Non-executive Directors BUHBHITEE

Mr. TSOI David BRERAE

Mr. SHEK Lai Him Abraham VR E bl

Mr. LEE Jor Hung MR E

Ms. YU Pauline Wah Ling TERLL

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Mr. LIN Zimin, Mr. iR 4 =2 WA - MME G £ - =48
LI Yinzhong and Mr. TSOI David shall retire at the Annual General A E REXHELEBRARREEF RS
Meeting. All of the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer  FiR{F - Fi B Ll R FEEHE BRI
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General YREZAEEREBE RS FEiREF -
Meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages
16 to 27 in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” to this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
that all the independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors, has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date renewable automatically until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on
the other expiring at the end of the initial term or any time thereafter.

Each of the non-executive Directors has been appointed for a term
of three years commencing from Listing Date until terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the
Company or the respective Director.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has been
appointed for a term of three years commencing from Listing Date,
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company and until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing served by either the Company or the
respective Director.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Information regarding directors’ emoluments and senior
management’s emoluments are set out in notes 8 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or chief executives
of the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) which was required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which is taken or deemed to have under such provision
of the SFO), or which was required to be entered in the register
referred to therein pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
was otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, to the knowledge of the Directors, the
interest or short positions of the following persons (which are not
Directors or chief executives of the Company) in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company, which were required to the
disclosed to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO or recorded in the register required to the kept by the

TERRRRSD - HEROGREESEF
MEERAXR

R2018F 12 A31H " BEEEA/HAM - T3
AL (WIIEZFRARRETEITHASR)
RARBIRDIAEERNDFHEBREE
FRHE GO EXVEBE2R3D F AR A
NABENSIREES KB E KA E336
BEBAREGFE 2 B MA %

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, were as follows: B
Approximate
percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name Notes Capacity interested capital
BE#ERZz WEEARARERIT
=x ME BH ZERYE REENESL
Lucky Link Investments Limited 1 Beneficial owner 297,900,000 67.49%
(“Lucky Link”)
TEREERAR([RE] EnEAA
Top Charm Investments Limited 1 Beneficial owner 33,100,000 7.50%
(“Top Charm”)
BEREARAG ([EE]D EnEAA
Capital Century Company Limited 1 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
(“Capital Century”) corporation
BBk EBR QA ([BFRKEF]) RELAEER
China Everbright Holdings Company 2 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
Limited (“CE Hong Kong”) corporation
FEXREBEBRAQA REAE R
(THBEXA(EE) ]
China Everbright Group Limited 3 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
(“China Everbright Group”) corporation
PR REBRGD AT R EEER
(THBEXAER])
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 4 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
(“Huijin”) corporation
PRESKREBREME LA REmEE R
(M%)
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Notes:

Save

Lucky Link and Top Charm directly hold approximately 67.49% and 7.50%
of the total issued shares, respectively, Capital Century holds 100% shares
in Lucky Link and Top Charm and is therefore deemed to be interested in
297,900,000 and 33,100,000 shares held by Lucky Link and Top Charm,
respectively.

CE Hong Kong is an indirect controlling shareholder of Lucky Link and Top
Charm. CE Hong Kong directly holds 99.997% shares in Capital Century,
0.3% of which is held on trust for the National Administrative Bureau of
State Owned Property, and indirectly holds 0.003% shares in Capital
Century through China Everbright Holdings (Nominee) Limited. Therefore,
CE Hong Kong is deemed to be interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000
shares held by Lucky Link and Top Charm, respectively.

China Everbright Group holds 100% shares in CE Hong Kong and is
therefore deemed to be interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000 shares
held by Lucky Link and Top Charm, respectively.

Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council and holds 55.67%
equity interest in China Everbright Group. It is deemed to be interested in
297,900,000 and 33,100,000 shares held by Lucky Link and Top Charm,
respectively.

as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Company

had not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short

positi

ons in the shares or underlying shares or debentures of the

Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under

the p
were

rovisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
required, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded

in the register referred to therein.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Share Option Scheme”
below, at no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 December
2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentive or rewarding eligible persons (“Eligible Persons”). Eligible
Persons include director, employee, agent, consultant, business
partner, joint venture partner, supplier of goods or services or any
director or employee of such supplier, customer or any director
or employee of such customer, and person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy or professional services or any director or
employee of such entity, who has contributed or will contribute to
the Group on the basis of their contribution to the development and
growth of the Group. No share option has been granted under the
Share Option Scheme since its adoption by the Company.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of the
Company’s listing, 16 January 2018 (“Listing Date”) and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 14
December 2027).

EEREROUBHFNER
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 44,140,000 shares, representing 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue as at the Listing Date and as at the date of
this annual report. The maximum number of shares issuable under
share options granted to each eligible participant in the Share Option
Scheme (including both exercised and outstanding options) within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue. Any grant or further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A
grant of share options under the Share Option Scheme to a director,
chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Option). In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, which would result in the shares issued and to
be issued, upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding),
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of the grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company
in issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5
million, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted on or
before the relevant acceptance date upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period
of the share options granted is determined by the directors, save
that such a period shall not be more than 10 years from the date
of offer of the share options and subject to the provisions for early
termination as set out in the Share Option Scheme. There is no
requirement of a minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised.
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The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than the
highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of offer of the share options, which must be a
date on which the Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing
in securities; (i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately before the
date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company is share as
at the date of offer.

No share options were granted during the year ended 31 December
2018 and no share options were outstanding under the Scheme as
at 31 December 2018.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions during the year. The Stock Exchange has
granted to the Company a conditional waiver from strict compliance
with the announcement requirement for the following transactions
subject to (i) the directors confirming that those transactions have
been entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group, on normal commercial terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole;
and (i) the proposed annual caps for those transactions are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Leasing transactions

Save for one lease agreement which will expire on 30 April 2021,
the Group has entered into lease agreements with China Everbright
Bank Limited (“CE Bank”) and Everbright Securities Company
Limited (“CE Securities”) which will expire by 31 December 2019.
Such rents are agreed between the parties based on arms’ length
basis and normal commercial terms. The actual amount under the
leasing transactions with CE Bank and CE Securities for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was in aggregate sum of RMB6.3 million.

CE Bank is an associate of China Everbright Group and a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. CE Securities
is a subsidiary of China Everbright Group, who the Company’s
controlling shareholder, and is also a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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The cap amount payable by the Group in respect of the lease
agreements with CE Bank and CE Securities for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to an aggregate sum of RMB7 million.

Deposits services transactions

The Group entered into a deposit services framework agreement
(“Deposit Services Framework Agreement”) with China Everbright
Group on 10 August 2017 in respect of deposit services provided
by CE Bank to the Group. Under the Deposit Services Framework
Agreement, China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank to
provide deposit services to the Group at interest rates determined
based on normal commercial terms and after arm’s length
negotiations between CE Bank and the Group that are no less
favourable to the Group than the terms available to the Group from
independent third parties.

CE Bank is an associate of China Everbright Group and a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. The average daily
closing balance of deposit amount under the Deposit Services
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2018 is
HK$40.7 million.

Pursuant to the Deposit Framework Agreement, the Directors
estimate that the maximum daily closing balance of deposit amount
under the Deposit Services Framework Agreement will not exceed
HK$63.0 million for each of the financial years ended 31 December
2017, 2018 and 2019.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT
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Loan Services Agreement

The Group entered into a loan services framework agreement (“Loan
Services Framework Agreement”) with CE Bank on 18 December
2017 in respect of loan services provided by CE Bank, Hong Kong
Branch (“CE Bank HK”) to the Group. Under the Loan Services
Framework Agreement, CE Bank HK may provide, subject to internal
approval procedures, loan services in the maximum sum of HK$300
million (or such other equivalent sum in U.S. dollar or British pounds)
to the Group at interests rates determined based on market rates.

CE Bank HK is an associate of China Everbright Group and a
connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Loan Services Agreement, the amount of loan
services to be obtained from CE Bank HK will not exceed HK$300
million for each of the financial years ended 31 December 2017,
2018 and 2019.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have,
for the purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed
the continuing connected transactions set out above and have
confirmed that these continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
its business; (i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors, KPMG, were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
auditors have not qualified its report in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group
during the year are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.
The Company has complied with the applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions which
constituted non-exempt connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions. Other related party transactions either
did not constitute connected transactions/continuing connected
transactions or constituted connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions but were exempted from all disclosure and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” disclosed above and note 22 to the financial
statements headed “Related Party Transactions”, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Directors are
considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than those
businesses for which the Directors were appointed as directors to
represent the interest of the Company and/or the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued])
EEgRE ()

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

China Everbright Group, the controlling shareholders of the Group,
had entered into a letter of non-competition undertaking in favour
of the Company dated 28 June 2017. Based on the discussions
of the management of the Company with China Everbright Group,
the management of the Company understands that the property
investment, property leasing and property management business
conducted by China Everbright Group are geographically delineated
with no substantive competition with the principle business of the
Group in southwest region of the PRC and in the United Kingdom.

Based on the above, the independent non-executive directors of the
Company confirmed that up to the date of this annual report, there
iS No substantive competition between the property investment,
property leasing and property management business conducted by
China Everbright Group and the principle business of the Group in
southwest region of the PRC and in the United Kingdom.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for employment contracts, no other contracts, relating to the
management and/or administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted
during the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of our Directors are interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to Rule 8.10 of
the Listing Rules during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there
was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for
the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or associated
companies.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued])
EEgRS(E)

EMPLOYEES/EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of employees/emolument policy are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report
on page 15 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF
Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
established in the PRC are members of a state-managed retirement
scheme operated by the PRC government. No forfeited contribution
under this scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any listed securities of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of
this annual report, the Company has maintained the public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S GLOBAL
OFFERING

Details of use of net proceeds from the Company’s global offering

during the year are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on page 14 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued])
EEgRE ()

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors
and the Group’s senior management who, because of his/her office
or employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to
the Group or the Company’s securities.

Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the year under review. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the
Model Code by the senior management of the Group during the year
under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board and management of the Company are committed to
maintaining good standards of corporate governance. The Board
believes that conducting the Group’s business in a transparent
and responsible manner and following good corporate governance
practices serve its long-term interests and those of shareholders.
The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the CG
Code as its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.
The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on page
28 to 48 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment as auditors of the Company will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

According to the relevant regulations issued by the Ministry of
Finance of the PRC regarding the audit work on financial statements
of state-owned enterprises, there are restrictions (not exceed 5
years) in respect of the years of audit services that an accounting
firm can continuously provide to a state-owned enterprise. China
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued])
EEgRS(E)

Everbright Group Ltd. (“China Everbright Group”) had continuously
engaged KPMG, had exceeded the prescribed time limit, and had
appointed Ernst & Young as its auditor since 2016.

The Company is an indirect subsidiary of China Everbright Group
which is a state-owned enterprise, proposed that (1) in the following
year, the Company shall appoint the same auditor as China
Everbright Group in accordance with the relevant regulations, and
(2) the Company shall continue to appoint the same auditor as
China Everbright Group and the appointment shall be made on an
independent basis. The proposals are subject to the approval of
shareholders of the Company at general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

LIU Jia
Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 March 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB EIRS

Independent auditor’s report to the members of

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited

(Incorporated in British Virgin Islands with limited liability and
transferred by way of continuation into the Cayman Islands)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Everbright
Grand China Assets Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(“the Group”) set out on pages 98 to 199, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA' s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BUZHEORS (8)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

AREZRER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional BAEBFZEZEARESENHEEZHEmMS

judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated ¥} & £ 2 #% $ HH fEl 4x & Bt ﬁ‘“ WMERTBE
financial statements of the current period. These matters were Z & %IE\ CHREEBRENTEEE R ERE
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial 4R & Bf 1% ¥ &k M iEK & & 4 ﬁ M= B
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we TR MEZT € ff ZEETHRESH

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties

REWMEME

BEENER -

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and note 1(e) to the accounting policy.

B2HEE M BmMRMT12RM T 1N 5 EE

The Key Audit Matter
BREERERE

The Group’ s investment properties, which are located
in Chengdu and Kunming, comprise office premises,
retail shops and car parking bays. The fair value of the
Group ' s investment properties as at 31 December
2018 was RMB900.9 million, which represented 81%
of the Group " s total assets as at that date.

The fair value of the Group s investment properties as
at 31 December 2018 was assessed by the board of
directors based on independent valuations prepared
by an independent firm of surveyors. The valuation
gains on investment properties recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss represented
63% of the Group s profit before taxation for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

We identified assessing the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter because of the
significance of investment properties to the Group s
total assets and the significance of the valuation gains
on investment properties to the Group s profit before
taxation and because the valuation of investment
properties can be inherently subjective and requires
the exercise of significant judgement and estimation,
in particular in determining the appropriate valuation
methodology, capitalisation rates, market rents and
adjusted quoted prices in active markets which
increases the risk of error or management bias.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ESETERRNMNEEZSER

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
investment properties included the following:

. obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the independent firm of surveyors
engaged by the Group on which the directors’
assessment of the fair values of investment
properties was based;

° assessing the qualifications of the external surveyor
and their experience and expertise in the properties
being valued and considering their objectivity and
independence;

. discussing with the management and the external
surveyors about their valuation methodology and
challenging the key estimates and assumptions
adopted in the valuations, including the capitalisation
rates, market rents and adjusted quoted market
prices, by comparing assumptions made in prior
years with the current year’ s assumptions and
current publicly available data, with the assistance of
our internal property valuation specialists;

° comparing tenancy information, including committed
rents and occupancy rates, provided by the Group
to the external surveyors with underlying contracts
and related documentation, on a sample basis; and

. conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to the
investment properties and discussing with the
respective property managers to understand if the
occupancy rates of the respective properties are
consistent with those adopted in the valuations.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued])
BUBRHENRS (8)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
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How the matter was addressed in our audit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BUZEEIRS (&)

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor” s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group " s financial reporting
process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued])

BUBRHENRS (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’ s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

— Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

— Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group” s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)
BUZEEIRS (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

— Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

— Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor” s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

— Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

— Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued])

BUBRHENRS (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and,
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’ s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’ s report is Tse Wong Pui.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince " s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

19 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A4S 3L
meEaRX

For the year ended 31 December 2018 — (Expressed in Renminbi (RMB))

HZE2018F12A31HILEFE — (AARE(TARKE])IIR)

Note 2018 2017
B 5% RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Revenue Ik & 4 61,742 66,657
Cost of services and sales PR 75 K2 $H 65 AKX AR (15,453) (16,089)
Gross profit ER 46,289 50,568
Valuation gains on investment REMENGHER S
properties 12 33,787 18,585
Other net income/(losses) Hag A (E18) F8 5 2,679 (225)
Distribution costs Sal = 1D (904) (830)
Administrative expenses ITHF X (26,665) (27,774)
Other operating expenses Hib &Y (303) (55)
Profit from operations KR E 54,883 40,269
Finance costs & B AR 6(a) (1,614) (2,194)
Profit before taxation Bt By A 6 53,269 38,075
Income tax Frig i 7(a) (16,715) (13,809)
Profit for the year FRFE 36,554 24,266
Attributable to: DT &IEEM
Equity shareholders of RRARERBRR
the Company 36,554 24,266
Earnings per share BRAER 10
Basic and diluted BEARR#EE RMBO0.08 RMBO0.07
AR ¥0.087T AR#0.077

The notes on pages 105 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
froBRmRkEMNEENRRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 — (Expressed in RMB)

HZE2018F12A31B LFE — (AARKTIR)

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T AREFTTT
Profit for the year FRFE 36,554 24,266
Other comprehensive income FREMEEYE (F#E
for the year (after tax and RREHOEHAE)
reclassification adjustment)
Item that may be reclassified HIEr g EXT 7B R 1E
subsequently to profit or loss: mHIEA -
Exchange differences on BMETIIERN
translation of: E X ZE R
financial statements of REAREME([H
companies outside the People’s B |) 3BHNA BB 7§ 3R
Republic of China (the “PRC”) = 7,106 (888)
Total comprehensive income HERZHEKZEZEE
for the year 43,660 23,378
Attributable to: DTN IEE -
Equity shareholders of the RAGERERR
Company 43,660 23,378

The notes on pages 105 to 199 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fn e WE IR IR

At 31 December 2018 — (Expressed in RMB) 742018412 A31H — (A A R¥75I7R)

31 December 31 December
Note 2018 2017
(Note)
2018% 20174
Bt 5 12A31H 12H31H
(B 5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%®F ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties "EYHE 12 900,900 876,600
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB kB 11 3,298 3,437
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE B 19(b)(ii) 1,457 1,325
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 905,655 881,362
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale BEELEME 13,983 3,794
Trade and other receivables B 5 N HE fh el 2 1E 15 8,549 8,742
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEYD 16 181,311 42,435
R 203,843 54,971
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables Z 5 & H e 3R 17 25,706 20,797
Contract liabilities EHEaE 14 4,705 =
Bank loans RITER 18 6,000 6,000
Current taxation BV EA % 18 19(a) 767 1,924
R 37,178 28,721
Netourrentassets . WHEHER® (SECo N
Total assets less current EEHAERRBAR
liabilities 1,072,320 907,612

The notes on pages 105 to 199 form part of these financial F 1051998 WM T BN XS KR E
statements. H—& o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PGSITION (Continued)
REMBRRE (E)

At 31 December 2018 — (Expressed in RMB) 742018412 A31H — (A A R¥757R)

31 December 31 December
Note 2018 2017
(Note)
20184 20174
B 5 12831H 12A31H
(B 5E)
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bank loans RITER 18 20,500 26,500
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHEAR 19(b)(ii) 172,765 161,847
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 193,265 188,347
NET ASSETS EEFREH 879,055 719,265
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B AR #E
Share capital fi% < 20(c) 345,042 273,975
Reserves B 534,013 445,290
TOTAL EQUITY R 879,055 719,265

Note:  The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 at 1 January 2018. Under the ~ Bfi st : A E R 2018F1 18 & X E H(E B

transition methods chosen, comparative information is not restated. MR MELEDNE5S - BIBFFIRIEN
See note 1 (c)(ii). BEAN  HBREBATFEY - F2H

B 31 () i)

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 & E & 2019F3 A 198 #t /W IR T3 o
March 2019

Directors BE

The notes on pages 105 to 199 form part of these financial $105F199E WM T B R ZEHM K =
statements. H—& o o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

=]

e

mBB)R

For the year ended 31 December 2018 — (Expressed in RMB)

HZ2018F12A31B L FE — (MAR|R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AAARERRES
PRC
Share Share  Capital ~statutory Exchange Retained
Note capital  premium  reserve  reserves  reserves profits Total
H
i Kx  RfEE EXBE  AERE  NERE  REAE aif
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%Tn ARETn AR%Tn ARETR
(note (note (note (note (note
()  20(d)i)) 20 20(d)(iv))  20(a)iii))
(FizE (3 Rz (s (HizE
00) 2006 2000 200 20(d)ii)
Balance at 1 January 2017 K071 A1B B4 273,975 = 81,796 2,287 (40,088) 877,967 695,887
Changes in equity for 2017: MTFREREY :
Profit for the year EWFE - - - - 24266 24,266
Other comprehensive income H2ENE - - - - (888) - (888)
Total comprehensive income rENRER - - - - (888) 24266 23,378
Transfer 1o reserve ERGE - - - 718 - (119) -
Balance at 31 December 2017 and ~ W2017512A310 K
1 January 2018 01851 A1A M & 273,975 - 81,796 2,955 (40,976) 401,515 719,265
Changes in equity for 2018: 0185 EHEE .
Profit for the year ERFIE - - - - - 36,554 36,554
Other comprehensive income Ezmla - - - - 7,106 - 7,106
Total comprehensive income PENEAE - - - - 7106 36554 43,660
Transfer to reserve BEEZEE - - - 1,092 - (1,092) -
lssue of ordinary shares under il BEERAFRE
public offering (PO’), net of share  ([ERAREE ) %f
issuance expenses AR NBETRMET 2000 71,067 45,063 - - - - 116,130
Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018F12A31 AL S 345,042 45,063 81,796 4,047 (33,870) 436,977 879,055

The notes on pages 105 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 — (Expressed in RMB)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

o REMER

HZE2018F12A31B LFE — (AARKTIR)

Note 2018

(i@ RMB’000 RMB’000

RMB’000
ARETR ARRTH NGRS R

2017
RMB’000

Operating activities REEH
Cash generated from REFERE
operations 16(b) 24,275 40,362
Tax paid: BEAHIA -
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — B8P E ¥R ER
(“CIT”) paid (T ZEmER) (7,086) (4,660)
— PRC Land Appreciation Tax — B & B + i 3% 5 ¢
(“LAT”) paid ([t 3BER ) - (2,844)
Net cash generated from RETHFBRELFR
operating activities 17,189 32,858
Investing activities RETED
Payment for the purchase BEME HEREAE
of property, plant and FTEFRIB
equipment (1,321) (930)
Proceeds from disposal HEWE  BEREED
of property, plant and FT{S K18
equipment - 24
Interest received BFIE 5 1,147 233
Net cash used in investing RETFEHFMARLEE
activities (174) (673)

The notes on pages 105 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.
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F105E 199 MM LB N % F M 7% &R

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3



104

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

RERERER(H)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 — (Expressed in RMB)

HZ2018F12A31B L FE — (MAR|R)

Note 2018 2017
Bt EEGLUEOLIVCT Y RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥ETRE BNE RPN S
Financing activities BETEH
Repayment of bank loans BEIBTER (6,000) (15,313)
A loan to intermediate holding  mF N ER A B E &
company 22(c) (3,000) —
A loan repaid by intermediate RN IERAREEE R
holding company 22(c) 3,000 2,065
Interest paid EFE (1,623) (2,214)
Proceeds from issue of shares 2417 & 17 715 2B 128,065 —
Payment of listing expenses S ETREY (7,066) (15,529)
Net cash generated from/ B EEEFE, (FiH)
(used in) financing REFE
activities 113,376 (30,991)
Net increase in cash and ReRESEEY
cash equivalents EIFE 130,391 1,194
Cash and cash equivalents R1B1EHRER
at 1 January BeZEY 16(a) 42,435 42,693
Effect of foreign exchange HI\EERSFHNETE
rate changes 8,485 (1,452)
Cash and cash equivalents R12831AHE$ K
at 31 December REEEY 16(a) 181,311 42,435

The notes on pages 105 to 199 form part of these financial

statements.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

CUE e

(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to
the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2018 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
investment properties (see note 1(e)) which are stated at
its fair value. The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless otherwise indicated.

1 EXRSHEBE

(a

(b)

EHREY

HEFBRRDBRROEFES
g ((EAEGMA®])
MENAEERBEEN KRS
R (F B MK ®REER) (K
mEBREAEEROEREE
g mE LR - FE G ER
(BEAgTEADERE) - FR
AREHRAUREFE QR GHRH
ZREMRMB - IWFEBMHEK
NHEBEABEXSMBRA
AlEZ EMAR A ZE R RE K
X AEBEMRMATESFTR
RMEEER T -

BREFMARSEHMAE TR
AEEZRTEAHEHBERE
M AR B 2 F AT R
EAEEMHREER - M
1R B RER I F AT &
ISR R E R 2 E A &5t
BREHEH  HERRTE
BESHHHERNKERR
A ERREHD N ZEN B R
RARBR

HMEBEHLmREE

HZE2018F12A31HIEFEH
HEVBEFRREEARATRHE
WBAR(HKBEIAER]) -

BRIREME(RMF1E)EB A
REEIRIN  BREMBHERSE
TR EEEGRESKNAE
- -BRARRPAN  HEMK
BRUAAREZY FERE
BHBEHERON T -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these

estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision

affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty

are discussed in note 2.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies

U]

Overview

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs
and amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group. Of
these, the following developments are relevant to
the Group’s financial statements:

° HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

° HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

o HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

HKFRS 9 and HK (IFRIC) 22 do not have a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial
position for the current or prior period have been
prepared or presented in these financial statements.

1

EARSTHE(E)
(c) ETHFEEE
(i) #=E

BEEGMASERMS
EHAI ZKB BT B RS
BRI RMKE B M s &
A ZEBTAR  YRAE
BRTEFHEAERLE
Moo B LATH 3R B
£ 1 B RS IRR AE R

e (BEAMBHmMELEA)
FoW - 2HTA

o (BEUBHELEL])
E155% KA EFEFE
Fol:0 &3

e AE(BEKRMBEHmSE
aEBZEg) —F22
R IERXE R
BAALE

AEELMTARRTE
139 0 14 5 A 0 £ 4 3
TEAHRIE -

(BERMBREERFE
HFRBEEBEREYHERE
2EZEg)— F£2%=
BYHAEEE A B TS
e Y 36 48 S B 75 IR 0 A AR
MBEREANRELZT
DAY EBERFE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1 # AR & ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

U]

(i)

Overview (continued)

The Group has been impacted by HKFRS 15 in
relation to presentation of contract liabilities. Details
of the changes in accounting policies are discussed
in note 1(c(ii)) for HKFRS 15. Under the transition
methods chosen, the Group recognises the
cumulative effects of the initial application of HKFRS
15 as an adjustment to the opening statement of
financial position at 1 January 2018. Comparative
information is not restated.

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for recognising revenue and some costs from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 replaces
HKAS 18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising
from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for construction contracts.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method. Comparative information has not
been restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 18. As allowed by HKFRS 15, the Group has
applied the new requirements only to contracts that
were not completed before 1 January 2018.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with

customers (continued)

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes on previous accounting policies are set out

below:

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities

Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised

only if the Group has an unconditiona

| right to

consideration. If the Group recognises the related
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration for the promised goods and services
in the contract, then the entitlement to consideration
is classified as a contract asset. Similarly, a contract
liability, rather than a payable, is recognised when
a customer pays consideration, or is contractually
required to pay consideration and the amount
is already due, before the Group recognises the

related revenue. For a single contract
customer, either a net contract asset

with the
or a net

contract liability is presented. For multiple contracts,
contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated

contracts are not presented on a net basis

EREHBRR(H)
(c) EifBEEE (&)
(i) (ERMBHREENSE

1555 - REEF &AW
(&)

BERAESTBREDN
HERFENEMBFBH
sl

EHEERRELNZS

REC(EAWHHRE LD
F15%  EEAKBEHEA
Yo BY X (B B IR 1 5 R
- 77 8RR E WA
fid 75 55 [ 1 B (R B R
SR ARENE R &R
%5 ) (B 2 Al #E 53 4E B I
A RIRE B F 288
RAENEE - Rtk EX
SERERERBAR B
EPXHHREBHANER
XNREEZERCD 2 H
- RAIREANRE(M
FERMARE) - HEEP
ME—GHOMmE @ 271%F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(i) HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

Presentation of contract assets and liabilities
(continued)

To reflect these changes in presentation, the Group
has reclassified RMB675 thousand from receipt-
in-advance under “Trade and other payables” to
contract liabilities at 1 January 2018, as a result of
the adoption of HKFRS 15.

(d) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has
power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and
no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(h)(ii)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

1 EXSRBEGE)

(d)

B & A &l ()

(M EEHR LTI ER
BRI ERNIEERE
B EBERANESEm NIE
MR ARRAEED 2 E
B HIEHHEELRAE
N AgREIMER -

fief 2N 5% [ 25 25 49 B B % ) 422
B AFEXZBEEFELERX
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note
1(g)) to earn property leasing income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they
are still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and their fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or loss
arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement
or disposal of an investment property is recognised in
profit or loss. Property leasing income from investment
properties is accounted for as described in note 1(r).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(h)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site
on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion
of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note

1(t).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter
of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of completion.

— Equipment and others 2-20 years with residual
value of 3%-10%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part
is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset
and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1 # AR & ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)  (

b= B HAN

B EBEEUAARE T ITIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

U]

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the Group are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term except where the property
is classified as an investment properties (see note
1(e)) or is held for development for sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

U]

(A)

Credit losses from contract assets and lease
receivables

Policy applicable from 1 January 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for

expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables);

— contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see
note 1(i));

— lease receivables; and

— loan commitments issued, which are not

measured at FVPL.

Financial assets measured at fair value are not
subject to the ECL assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)  (
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between
the cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

— fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate;

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable;

— loan commitments: current risk-free rate adjusted
for risks specific to the cash flows.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables
and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)  (

BEAEZAIN  MESBEAUARBE T TIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument (including a loan commitment) has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the
date of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account, except for investments in debt securities that
are measured at FVOCI (recycling), for which the loss
allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the fair value reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 1(r)
(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-
impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Fr BB HRBIN - FTE B AARE T LHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EREHBRE)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued) (h GEEEREERME &

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

B

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018

Prior to 1 January 2018, an “incurred loss” model
was used to measure impairment losses on financial
assets not classified as at FVPL (e.g. trade and
other receivables, available-for-sale investments
and held-to-maturity debt securities). Under the
“incurred loss” model, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
included:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss
was determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate, where
the effect of discounting was material. This
assessment was made collectively where
these financial assets shared similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and had not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which were assessed for impairment
collectively were based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease could
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss was only recognised to
the extent that it did not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

B

(i)

Policy applicable prior to 1 January 2018 (continued)

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other
financial assets carried at amortised cost was
considered doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group was
satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written off against
the gross carrying amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account were reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes in
the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly were
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

— investment in a subsidiary in the Company’s
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

amount is estimated.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)
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(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal, if measurable, or value in
use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0]

0

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost and net realisable values
of completed property held for sale are determined as
follows:

In the case of completed properties developed by the
Group which comprise of multiple units which are sold
individually, the cost of each unit is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs for that
development project to each unit on a per square meter
basis, unless another basis is more representative of the
cost of the specific unit. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to be incurred in
selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for sale comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the properties held for sale to
their present location and condition.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract assets is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(r)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract.

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays non-refundable consideration before the Group
recognises the related revenue (see note 1(r)). A
contract liability would also be recognised if the Group
has an unconditional right to receive non-refundable
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised (see note 1(k)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(5= A S

78 2 e B ()

B EEHUARETITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k)

)

(m)

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(j)).

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses
(see note 1(h)(i))

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed
for expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(h)(i).

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

Contributions to PRC local retirement schemes pursuant
to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1 # AR & ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in
the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable
that they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(e), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those
assets at their carrying value at the reporting date unless
the property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all
of the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Fr BB HRBIN - FTE B AARE T LHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(p) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(r)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past due
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when
it arises from the sale of properties, the provision of
services or the use by others of the Group’s assets under
leases in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has
the right to use the asset, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be
entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. The group
takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration
for any effects of a significant financing component if the
period of financing is 12 months or less.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Revenue recognition (continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

U]

(i)

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.

Sales of properties

Revenue arising from the sale of properties
developed for sale in the ordinary course of business
is recognised when legal assignment is completed,
which is the point in time when the customer has
the ability to direct the use of the property and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits of
the property. Deposits and instalments received
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of financial
position under contract liabilities (see note 1 (j)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1 # AR & ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of properties (continued)

In the comparative period, revenue from sales of
properties was recognised upon the later of the
signing of the sale and purchase agreement and
the completion of ownership of the properties,
which was taken to be the point in time when the
risks and rewards of ownership of the property
has passed to the buyer. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the date of
revenue recognition were included in the statement
of financial position under trade and other payables
and no interest expense was accrued on receipt-in-
advance under “Trade and other payables”.

Property management service fee

These fees are recognised when services are
rendered.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling)
that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset. For credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss, except those arising from foreign currency
borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign
operation which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated into
RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

t

(u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the
cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases
when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

0)

(il

(i)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

1 EXSHBEGE)

(u) BB (&)

(b)

1\Fl/
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=
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=
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)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(

b= B HAN

B EBEEUAARE T ITIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Related parties (continued)

1 EXSFBEE)

(u) BB (&)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the b) W& AT HE Mg
following conditions applies: (continued) BNE 82 el A& B A B -
(%&)
(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan v) ERAKREENERK
for the benefit of employees of either the SEE@EB 2 ERHT
Group or an entity related to the Group. & 8 F| 5 3% 37 #9 B B
BAIETE -
(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by vy ERI@QFfATALT
a person identified in (a). PR sk 2 A o
(vij A person identified in (a)(i) has significant (Vi) R@WOT R E AT H
influence over the entity or is a member of the EREEATENL
key management personnel of the entity (or of BZEE(KZE *&‘2
a parent of the entity). METRAREEE
AB o
(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of (viiy ZEBHEMESEE
which it is a part, provides key management R E{RI K B A Bl [ A
personnel services to the Group or to the EBSANEEST A A
Group’s parent. REZTZEEAER
& o
Close members of the family of a person are those family EALTZE %ﬁ IRTEHAA] L &%
members who may be expected to influence, or be ATHEHZEER §< 2 2 K E K
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity. B HXZATHZEERS
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial information, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group’s various geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in applying the Group’s accounting policies,
which are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

EXREHBRR(H)

v) ZEHE
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MEBERRMEE HEBEMU - @
AIMELIFBEBEANNLEL D AP
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Fr BB HRBIN - FTE B AARE T LHIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

The following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. Note 21 contains
information about the assumption and their risk factors relating
to financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their fair value, unless
they are still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and their fair value
cannot be reliably determined at that time. The fair
value of investment properties is assessed annually
by independent qualified valuers, after taking into
consideration the net income allowing for reversionary
potential and redevelopment potential of the properties.

The assumptions adopted in the property valuations are
based on the market conditions existing at the end of
the reporting period, with reference to the appropriate
capitalisation rate.

(b) Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provisions for income taxes, as the
calculations of which depend on the ultimate tax
determinations and are subject to uncertainties. When
the final tax outcomes of these matters are different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax in the period in which such
determinations are made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
I # WA & (#8)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Frk BB AN * B LEHUARE FLHIR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued) 2 & &t 3| B & {4 5+ ()

(c) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried
forward and deductible temporary differences are
recognised and measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the relevant assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting date. In determining the carrying amounts
of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of assumptions
relating to the operating environment of the Group and
require a significant level of judgement exercised by
the directors. Any change in such assumptions and
judgement would affect the carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets to be recognised and hence the net profit in
future years.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The directors of the Company have been identified as the
Group’s most senior executive management. Operating
segments are identified on the basis of internal reports that the
Group’s most senior executive management reviews regularly
in allocating resources to segments and in assessing their
performances.

The Group’s most senior executive management makes
resources allocation decisions based on internal management
functions and assess the Group’s business performance as
one integrated business instead of by separate business lines
or geographical regions. Accordingly, the Group has only one
operating segment and therefore, no segment information is
presented.

The Group primarily operates in Mainland China and
accordingly, no geographical information is presented.

(c) BEEHEEEHNER

HA R TH E5 18 45 8 I ] R A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are property leasing,
provision of property management services and sales of
properties held for sale.

0]

Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from each significant category
is as follows:

iy 58

RE

BHMEBEAIRMERE &

HOMEEERGEFELEDEHE

(==
=

(i

EEXBHEBIWED T ¢

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Revenue from contracts with (&FEB B IEFHEXEH])
customers within the scope FE15EE AR E
of HKFRS 15 EFEHMN N R
Provision of property management 12t #) % & 1% ik 7%
services 18,272 20,446
Sales of properties held for sale SHEREREYE - 6,699
18,272 27,145
Revenue from other sources 3 B & fth 38R (9 Uk 25
Gross rentals from investment REKREMENHEEE
properties 43,470 39,5612
61,742 66,657

Note: The group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative
effect method. Under this method, the comparative
information is not restated and was prepared in accordance
with HKAS 18 and HKAS 11. See note 1(c)(ii).

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes
two customers with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenues for the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: three customers). Revenues from
these customers amounted to approximately RMB15,050
thousand in 2018 (2017: RMB24,328 thousand). Details
of concentrations of credit risk arising from this customer
are set out in note 21(a).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 35 3R 2R P & (48)
(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Frk BB AN * B LEHUARE FLHIR)
4 REVENUE (continued) 4 W ()
(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future (i) RERFEAFEHEFLEH
arising from contracts with customers in existence FHEREEHTFER Nz
at the reporting date
As at 31 December 2018, the remaining performance R2018F 12 H31H + K& HEIR
obligation under the Group’s existing contracts is BEXHNBETHRSGENEETS
RMB32,926 thousand. This amount represents revenue AR#E2026FT T > Z & AR
expected to be recognised in the future from the sale AXREFEELEMENHEES
contract for the property held for sale and sale contracts X MR EBEIRRISAEES
for providing property management services respectively. GEHBREDRE TERKE -
The Group will recognise the expected revenue in future, ARBEBRKHREREHY 145(
in the case of property held for sale, when the property is A BIFELEVWEMS -
assigned to the customer at March 2019, or in the case MER2019F3AEZETE )5
of providing property management services, when the B SR M EETEREM
services are completed, which is expected to occur over = EBERETAE  FEER K
the next one to six years. RIECF B A -
(i) Total future minimum lease receivables by (i) ZXEFAKREHEEWE
the Group Fog]
Total future minimum lease receivables under HERMMZ T REELEE
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented T B B A R 2R & K HH & e WK
premises which fall due as follows: THABZEI T -
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Within 1 year 15K 27,230 30,329
After 1 year but within 5 years 1F 12 1B5F K 39,858 59,844
After 5 years 5 1% 4,966 5,781
72,054 95,954
5 OTHER NET INCOME/(LOSSES) 5 HtsFWA(FH8)
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Interest income from bank deposits 81717 5k B9 F) E UL A 1,147 233
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses)  SMEUW 25~ (E518) F 58 1,379 (564)
Others Hib 153 106
2,679 (225)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (B& 3 & &4 BA b

B EBEEUAARE T ITIIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 6

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

Bt A 7

5B A E 0 kR

~ANIEE -

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
(a) Finance costs (a) Eﬂﬁﬁizﬁ
Interest expenses on bank loans RITERNF BMAX 1,614 2,194
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
(b) Staff costs (b) BEIKAX
Salaries, wages and other He IENK
benefits H 18 A 17,371 15,338
Contributions to defined [F) 57 56 it SR AR
contribution retirement plan sHEIH 1,295 1,421
18,666 16,759
Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to $;EN BERAEANNEAFTENE TA
participate in a defined contribution scheme administered and SEAM T THRFEIEMEED 5‘5‘\
operated by the local municipal government. The Group’s PRC FTHHIAE - AEFFTRHME D

subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated on certain
percentages of the employee salary as agreed by the local
municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement
benefits of the employees.

The Group also participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The Group’s and employee’s contributions to the
MPF Scheme are based on 5% of the relevant income of the
relevant employee (up to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000) and in accordance with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and related
regulations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the

annual contributions as described above.

Bt A F 5 (&)

BT ERFEEH/RFTAN  AEET

BERZF 8 X RREN AR A
BEREE-

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR T T
(c) Other items (c) HfbiEB
Cost of properties held for BEERBELEDE
sale sold B9 B 2R = 1,817
Depreciation (note 11) P& (MizE11) 335 380
Impairment losses WEEBE
— trade and other receivables — B RHM
(note 21(a)) JE W3R8
(Ht&E21(a)) 96 —
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 6 37 M
— audit service — ZER 1,060 728
— review and other service — ZE R HE MRS 352 —
Listing expenses ETAX 7,822 13,392
INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 7 HREBRRPHVAEHR
PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or (a) HLEBEmEPHEARE
loss represents:
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥F T ARET T
Current tax B HA B 18
PRC CIT (notes 7(b)(i) and (ii)) A 1 SRS AR
(B 527 (b)) K (ii) 4,769 3,756
PRC LAT (note 7(b)(ii) P (A
(B 37 (o) (i) - 472
Withholding tax (note 7(b)(iv)) TR (M FE7(b)(v)) 1,160 796
5,929 5,024
Deferred tax IE R B 1E
Origination and reversal of TRUEZENEER
temporary differences = (M5E19(0))
(note 19(b)) 10,786 8,785
16,715 13,809

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 3

147



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Bk ZHHAAI * FTBE EEHUARE T LY R)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 7 HZEBERZRDPHOREBH(E)
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b)) BHEHZREZEHHEFETEY
profit at applicable tax rates: B FBEE R -
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Profit before taxation At Al A 53,269 38,075
Notional tax on profit before HAABERERTIE - 1%
taxation, calculated at the rates ~ #BR8 i 18 R A HE (& i
applicable to profits in the tax BRFMBEHETE
jurisdictions concerned (notes (Bt 5E7 (b)) Bi))
7(0)(i) and (ii) 15,915 12,467
Tax effect of non-deductible TR B 2 B &
expenses = 6 21
Utilisation of tax effect of BT RERA
deductible temporary difference HHERHEE=R
previously not recognised CORRE A (627) (295)
Tax effect of unused tax losses AERKEBMIEEIE
not recognised Ok 986 —
Utilisation of tax losses previously &) 8 i@ 1 ok & R H 18 &5
not recognised # - (259)
Withholding tax on distributed [l & I
earnings and earnings to be RS B2 W B TR
distributed in the foreseeable O (B EE7 (b)(iv))
future (note 7(b)(iv)) - 1,057
Withholding tax for interest f BT B R A L FE AR
charges between PRC 0z NG ORI PN
subsidiaries and non-PRC EHRBENHR
subsidiaries (note 7(b)(iv)) (M 3E7(b)(v)) 435 464
LAT (note 7(b)(iii)) T HE A
(B 57 () i) - 472
Tax effect on LAT T b IEE T B B TS R 2 = (118)
Actual tax expense ERBIER 16,715 13,809
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

(0

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Island and BVI.

The income tax rate applicable to Group entities
incorporated in Hong Kong, for the income subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year ended
31 December 2018 is 16.5% (2017:16.5%). No
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group did not earn any income subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year ended 31
December 2018 (2017: nil).

According to the notice of taxation from relevant
tax authorities, Brighter Win Limited (“Brighter Win”)
established a PRC branch in Kunming, which is
determined as a body that substantially carries
out comprehensive management and control
on the branch’s business operation, employees,
accounts and assets of the branch within the PRC.
Accordingly, Brighter Win’s PRC branch is subject
to PRC corporate income tax at the rate of 25% on
the taxable income.

7

REBEBRTNAEH(H)

(b)

BIEF X R ZE B ETEH
BRI BRI AR - ()

)

REFRESHEREEHB
RESHMRAFEER &
SEEFTHMAHREEER
REARRBEEEAME
i o

HREBBEMK IR
SEERBREZE2018F12
RA31BLEFERNEBHMNE
BHEB WA - EiEA
Fr iS5 B 8 & 516.5% (2017
F :165%) cHARAEE
RE E2018F 128318 1E
FEVERDNEZRNE S
FMEHOEAMKA - Bt
WEELBEBNGHBE
(20174 : £&) -

REEBER KB IR
BA KKBRAB (K
KDREBRKIYHBED A
AR E RY D BN
XK E BB HBHR
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EFEREEE2HERE
FAE B ) B - I S oK
B D 1 AR R R T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

(i

(i)

Effective from 1 January 2008, under the PRC
Corporate Income Tax Law, the PRC’s statutory
income tax rate is 25%. The Group’s PRC
subsidiaries and branch are subject to PRC income
tax at 25% unless otherwise specified.

Pursuant to “Announcement of the State
Administration of Taxation on Issues Relating to
Enterprise Income Tax Pertaining to Implementation
of the Catalogue of Encouraged Industries in
Western Region”, Chengdu Everbright Property
Management Co., Ltd (“Everbright PM”) falls within
the eligible industry category and is eligible to enjoy
the preferential income tax rate of 15% for the year
ended 31 December 2018 (2017:15%).

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group
for sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, which under
the applicable regulations is calculated based on
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including lease charges of land use
rights, borrowing costs and relevant property
development expenditures.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, no LAT
was charged into the Group’s profit and loss as no
revenue was derived from the sales of properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting
profit at applicable tax rates: (continued)

(iv)

According to PRC corporate income tax laws and
its implementation rules, dividends receivable and
interest income received by non-PRC corporate
residents from PRC enterprises are subject to
withholding tax at a rate of 10%, unless reduced
by tax treaties or arrangements, for profits earned
since 1 January 2008.

Since the Group can control the amount and
timing of distribution of profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries, deferred tax liabilities are only provided
to the extent that such profits are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

7

REBRRRPHNAEHR (8

(b)

BRI R 2B B EE R
Bi A AR - (&)

(V)

BB E D EREBE
EREEREBA - HRXAE
200841 51 H # B EL &) F
B EPECEERET
B 1> 2 Y ER B WA AR B I
A B A 78 LA 10%H) B ==
B ENR(BRIERESEH
TEAEAK S & BERDRIBR) o

el 2 45 B A A2 2
8 ¢y o B 28 ) 2
HEOSFREME - At
A BUR B 1 08 7 T
BRBA R KA B
BT AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (BRZ A A - FTE S BEHUARE T LIIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEFHM

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

RBEE B QA &G 5 383(1)fF k&2
MCRRI(BBESMEER) RO
PIRBENESHFMOT :

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits Discretionary scheme 2018
in kind bonuses contributions Total
Be - EMRE 2018%
BeFliR BEEAL  BAGTEHSR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARETR
(ii)
Chairman IE
Liu Jia (i) 2] 5 i) 821 1,012 32 1,865
Executive director BTES
Lin Zimin (iv) WEH(v) 476 888 - 1,364
Non-executive Directors FETEE
Tse Hang Mui (vi) HAEW) - - - -
Li Yinzhong (vi) Z 3R i (vi) - - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Tsoi David (vii) FOK 4 (vii) 189 - - 189
Shek Lai Him, Abraham (viii) Ak viil) 189 - - 189
Lee Jor Hung (i) 1 (ix) 189 - - 189
Yu Pauline Wah Ling (x) FERLKX 189 - - 189
2,053 1,900 32 3,985
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and Discretionary scheme 2017
benefits in kind bonuses contributions Total
e RURIFE 20174
Beam WIERA  RIRGTEIRR B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARET T
(i)
Chairman £
Liu Jia (i) 2] 5 i) 577 — 16 593
Executive directors BTES
Lin Zimin (iv) WEH(v) 212 - — 212
Lee Wai Kwong (v) ZERI(v) 157 - 8 165
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Tse Hang Mui (vi) HAEEW) - - - -
Li Yinzhong (vi) Z 3R i (vi) - - — -
946 — 24 970

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

U)

(il

)

(vi)

(vii)

During the year, no emolument were paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals
set out in note 9 below as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office. No director has waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments during the year. No remuneration was paid
to independent non-executive directors during the year.

Discretional bonus is determined by reference to the
performance of individuals and the Group.

Mr. Liu Jia was appointed as director of the Company
on 1 September 2000 and re-designated as executive
director and the chairman of the Company on 7 June
2017.

Mr. Lin Zimin was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 25 November 2010 and re-designated as
executive director of the Company on 7 June 2017.

Mr. Lee Wai Kwong resigned as director of the Company
on 7 June 2017.

Ms. Tse Hang Mui and Mr. Li Yinzhong were appointed
as non-executive directors of the Company on 7 June
2017.

Mr. Tsoi David was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from the
Listing Date (16th January 2018).

8 EEHFM(AE)

0

(i)

(i)

(Vi)

(vii)

FRA AEBYARAMEFHT
XHEIOPFENARRS
MALTHREM—BALTZHN
ERME  AEBMAREE
FMAREBRAFF - HAE
REBRBE -FA - HEES
MELREREEMAME - F
AN RERBYIFRTEEX
HEAT Hr B -

BBEIEAL T2 REARAKREE
HIRIRFETE o

25 K EN2000F9A1HER
ERARNBIESE  WH20174F
BATEEMNEZRERARAIH
TESEZHREIR -

B 8L £ 2010411 258
BEARBARRRITES I
R2017F6 A7TEHEENEZ I A
RARHITES -

BT 55 £ 2017566 A7 H B¢
EERARES -

HEBZLERZRPEEHR
20176 A7THEZ T AR R A
EMITESE -

BEABEERZERARA

BYITESE B LTHE
(201841 168 ) # AR °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Bk ZHHAAI * FTBE EEHUARE T LY R)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(vii) Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham was appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company with
effect from the Listing Date (16th January 2018).

(ix) Mr. Lee Jor Hung was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from the
Listing Date (16th January 2018).

(x)  Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling was appointed as independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from
the Listing Date (16th January 2018).

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note
8 above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the
other three (2017: three) individuals are as follows:

ESHM(E)

(vii)y AEFRELEZTAEARR T
BYIHNTTES B LETMAHE
(201841 160 ) AR o

ix) ZThHEECEEETRBEARDT
BYHNTES BLEMAS
(20184E1 168 ) # AR °

X TEBZLTEZETAKXRFT
BYIEHNTTES B LEMAS
(201841 168 )/ E R o

REHMAL

EREZRTFMALH @& (2017
F:-MB)AES HEMESEBERNE
MHiFES c A =R (20175 : =R)
ATHEERBHINWOT

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR T T

Salaries and other emoluments 4 N H fth 3 B 850 623
Discretionary bonuses B 15 8 41 378 264
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET2IHE R 106 70
1,334 957

The emoluments of the three (2017: three) individuals with the
highest emoluments are within the following bands:

RMB nil — RMB1,000,000 AREELE

A K #1,000,0007T

=Z017TE  ZEZ2)EaHFMAL
B sEENT :

2018 2017
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

AE AE

3 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (BR B E A - FTE S BHAARE T LIIR)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

10 BRER

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of RMB36,554 thousand (2017: RMB24,266
thousand), and the weighted average of 436,863 thousand
ordinary shares (2017: 331,000 thousand shares) in issue
during the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary & 3 A% i #E 3 5 A% 2
shares

FAN BRERNEANDEAAQF
ETEREEREELGNBAR
36,554 T 7L(2017 &£ = A R &
24,266 F 7T) & B 317 &) i #& ¥ 5
% #1436,863 T A% & i/ A% (2017 F -
331,000 F ) s E LT :

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January A1 81 BE2&{TLERK 33,100,000 33,100,000
Effect of share subdivision DT D E T E

(note 20 (c)(i)) (Bt 5E20(c)(i) 297,900,000 297,900,000
Effect of new shares issued BT MO E

(note 20 (c)(ii)) (B 5E20(c)(ii)) 105,863,014 —
Weighted average number of ordinary &= 217 & 3 [% 10 #& F 15

shares in issue % & 436,863,014 331,000,000

The earnings per share calculation above has taken into
account of the Share Subdivision described in note 20(c).
The Share Subdivision became effective on 16 January 2018,
which was immediately prior to the completion of the Global
Offering. Accordingly, the number of ordinary shares in issue
has been adjusted retrospectively as if it was effective on 1
January 2017.

There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year
ended 31 December 2018, and therefore, diluted earnings per
share are the same as the basic earnings per share.

TE S RA R R & &M FE20()
Frit BB 5 3 2 © B 19 3F 2 72018
F1A16BER  REEZREER
FRATHETT - At - ERITERABREK
BEEEHBPAZE  BuHER2017
F1R1BER -

EREH E2018F12 A31 B I EE W
EELAHET AR HNEREER
FEFHRERBEFER -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(B =AM

B EBEEUAARE T ITIIR)

11

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

11 Y BEERE

Equipment
Buildings and others Total
BF RiEEEM &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARMT T AR T
Cost AN
At 1 January 2017 W20179F1/81H 3,161 4,220 7,381
Additions NE = 28 28
Disposals BE = (263) (263)
At 31 December 2017 H2017F12H31H 3,161 3,985 7,146
Additions NE - 196 196
At31December 2018 M2018F12A31A 8161 4181 R
Accumulated depreciation: EItirE
At 1 January 2017 R20174E1A1H (960) (2,608) (8,568)
Charge for the year FAZH (126) (254) (380)
Written back on disposals o= 4 - 239 239
At 31 December 2017 2017912 H31H (1,086) (2,623) (3,709)
Charge for the year FALZH (126) (209) (335)
At 31 December 2018~ M2018%F12A31H | 1,212 | (2,832 | (4,044)
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 December 2018 MR20184F12A31H 1,949 1,349 3,298
At 31 December 2017 MR2017412A831H 2,075 1,362 3,437

All of the Group’s buildings are located in the PRC.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12 BREWE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) REEBEHK

RMB’000

AR®T

At 1 January 2017 R201751 A1 H 857,113
Additions NE 902

Fair value adjustments NABEFARE 18,585

At 31 December 2017 R20179F12AH31H 876,600
Additions NE 1,125
Disposal BE (423)
Transfer to held for sale RELENEE (10,189)

Fair value adjustments NABERAR 33,787

At 31 December 2018 7201812 531 H 900,900

As at 31 December 2018, investment properties with
a total fair value of RMB340,121 thousand (2017:
RMB326,086 thousand) were pledged as collateral for

the Group’s bank loans (see note 18).

R2018F 12 A31H  AA(EB
BE%E /B ARKE340,121 F T
MIREMERTE : AR
326,086 T L) R A K B W RTT
EXEERERGEL2HEM T
18) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Fr BB HRBIN - FTE B AARE T LHIR)

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e.
unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to
meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable
inputs

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

12

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(continued)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s investment
properties carried at fair value were entirely
categorised in Level 3 (2017: Level 3). During the
year ended 31 December 2018, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2017: none). The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

All of the Group’s investment properties were
revalued as at 31 December 2018. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors in Hong Kong, Landscope Christie’s
International Real Estate, who have among their
staff Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued. The Group’s directors
and the financial manager have discussion with
the surveyors on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed at
the reporting date.

12

REWME(RE)

(b) REWFEIAAEBELE(E)

MREBEERER(E)

R2018F 12 A31H » &A%
BLRARBEFAENERE
MEZITDERBE=ZER
(20175 : E=ZEBH) - 1
H E2018F 12 A31 8 L4
B -BEEF-EfLHRFEC
EBHzEMNER HFE=
& A& &) 88 A 3k 85 1 (2017
F:|) AEEHBXK
ERTEEAER RS H
RERRAABEERZMH
TRZR O ER o

AEBEMMBEREMEY
fE2018% 12 A31 B E#H &1
o BEREEN—RB
S EBMITESELFE
BuEBE - ZAEMIT
WEBETERBRERS
eEXE8  HEMGE
MERNMIEMNE RERH
HAHEATHAEELR - R
HREBHARGER @ &
EENESENIELEEDR
REERIEGEEERE
B ERMEITEI R ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Fr BB HRBIN - FTE B AARE T LHIR)

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties
(continued)

(i)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements:

Valuation technique Unobservable input

fEE R FABEREAE

REME(R)

(b) REWFEIAAEBELE(E)

i) F=ZBRLOAEETEN
EH

Range Weighted average
€E mEYY

Market approach by direct adjustment of comparables for
comparison method

subject property

FRERLBANTSEN L SNNENRSEHEEEBE ZR

M L ERE
Term and Reversion
Method

FHRERE CUNIEY T ES

The investment properties are all located in the PRC
which are partially owner-occupied and partially
subjected to existing tenancies as at the date
of valuation. In this connection, for the property
interests in vacant possession, the fair value has
been determined assuming vacant possession
could be immediately available as at the date of
valuation. For the tenanted property interests,
the fair value has been determined on the basis
of capitalisation of the net income derived from
the existing tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary income potential of the respective
properties and where appropriate, also made
reference to the comparable market transactions.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

difference of transaction time and
physical attributes between the

capitalisation rate and discount factor

-50% to 60% N/A
(2017: -50% to 60%)

-50%%60% TER
(20174 : -50%%60%)
3.75% 10 6.5% N/A
(2017: 3.75% 10 6.5%)
3.75% t0 6.5% @R

(20174 : 3.75%%6.5%)

WEMERBLUNRPRH -
RiGEBH - Efn A%
FER HBHoBEREBME
ARBET - Bt - R
ZTEEAENMERER
Hﬁﬁfﬁ@ﬁﬁmﬁjﬁxﬂﬁ
EEBAERMEEREAL
BTG - R EW
wm AREBETUERE
HEEZFWREHERE
RERETE  WEERIF
MENEFRAES - A
R(nEE)2EAEER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(c)

Investment properties leased out under operating
leases

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 to 6 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually adjusted periodically to
reflect market rentals or contain a contingent rental
element which is based on a fixed percentage of
customer’s sales receipts.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment properties are
classified as investment properties.

12 REYXE(E)

(c)

HMEHETHAHHREYE

AEBEKEHETHER
EYME -BAONMBEHE—R
RI1Z6F YA AEZBHRE
M AREFHERMABERR
MENR—REEHABUR
BRMHEHEE  ERNEREEHA
FEXBEMEEA D RFTEDN
HEME -

HaRENEZ EHAOEER

ETHHRANELRAREN
%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

13

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the
Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise

stated.

13 MEARKRE

TXEH

BEREAREER

B BEXBENNE QA
BoBRIFREER  FAHERN

BRI AEERK -

Percentage of ownership interests

REERBAL
Group’s
Place of incorporation and Particulars of issued effective  Held by the  Held by the
Company Name business and paid up capital interest Company  subsidiary Principal activities
TR L R BRAR FEEN | WEAR
ACEL B BERAGFE BERER 2] BE IEED
Growing China Limited (“Growing China”)  The British Virgin Islands USD50,000/USD50,000 100% 100% —  Investment holding
Growing China Limited ([Growing China)) XB&BRESE 50,0003 7T,/50,000% 7T RERR
Metallic Field Limited (“Metallic Field”) The British Virgin Islands USD1/USD1 100% = 100% Investment holding
ZRNEERARAZENE)) EERARES 1EL/1ET REBR
Square Field Limited (“Square Field”) The British Virgin Islands USD50,000/USD50,000 100% - 100% Investment holding
FEERAA ([HE]) ERERRES 50,000%7C,//50,0005 1T REZR
Brighter Win Limited (“Brighter Win") Hong Kong HKD10,000/HKD10,000 100% - 100% Property leasing
ERBRAR ([Hk]) i 10,0007 7T,//10,0007% 7¢ nERE
First Step Corporation Limited (‘First Step”) Hong Kong HKD10,000/HKD10,000 100% - 100% Investment holding
BRABAR(EE]) BB 10,0007 7T,/10,000/8 7 RERR
Chengdu Sing Kong City Real Estate Co., ~ Chengdu, the PRC RMB30,000,000/ 100% - 100% Property development
Ltd (“Sing Kong City") RMB30,000,000 and property
leasing
RBFAAEXERAA(FHAM]) @  PERSD AR #30,000,0007,/ NERERMERE
AK%30,000,00070
Chengdu Everbright International Mansion ~ Chengdu, the PRC RMB75,310,900/ 100% - 100% Property leasing
Co., Ltd (“International Mansion”) RMB75,310,900 and property
management
RBXABBAEERAR ([EBAE] @ TELS AR%75,310,9007/ NERERMEERE
AR%75,310,9007
Chengdu Everbright Finance Centre Chengdu, the PRC HKD39,250,000/ 100% - 100% Property leasing
Development Co., Ltd (‘Finance Centre”) HKD39,250,000
REXXEBTOEEHEARAA RERH 39,250,000,/ WERE
(TegHR L)) (@) 39,250,000% 70
Chengdu Everbright Property Management ~ Chengdu, the PRC RMB1,023,972/ 100% - 100% Property management
Co., Ltd (“Everbright PM") RMB1,023,972
RBRRDEERFRAR B AR¥1,023972/ NEER
(TEADEEE])@) AR¥1,0239727
Everbright Grand China Assets Management Hong Kong HKD10,000/HKD10,000 100% - 100% Investment holding
Limited (b)
FRKFEEERARAR B 10,0007T,/10,000% T RERR

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Frk BB AN * B LEHUARE FLHIR)

13

14

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13 MBARKRE (&)
Notes: 5T
(@)  The official names of these companies are in Chinese. The English () ZELAAMERBBAPRX  MER
name is for identification purpose only. These companies were NEZAERER - ZE AR HiRE
registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the law of the REEREFMAEIEBEERE -
PRC.
(o)  Eastmate Limited (Hong Kong) was re-named as Everbright Grand ) EBERAR(EH)N2018F8AE
China Assets Management Limited in August 2018. BRIERKFEEERERRAA -
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 14 EHEE
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
20184 20184 20174
12A31H 1A1H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T T AR TR
Contract liabilities BHAR
— Billings in advance for HIREE R REHTER
provision of management X IHZ %
service 4,705 675 —
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously included HACKE BT B HRELER)E155%
as “Receipt-in-advance” under “Trade and other payables” % BEFTAIE S R E b FER A
(note 17) were reclassified to contract liabilities. An opening BT EBCRIEI(MF17)EF D
adjustment of RMB675 thousand as at 1 January 2018 was HAEGEHNAME -R2018F1H1HH
made for the same reason (see note 1(c)(ii)). BRAREAREST TERERE

i VE & (& B 5E1(c)i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Bk ZHHAAI * FTBE EEHUARE T LY R)

15 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 15 EFRHEMEKRKE

Trade debtors, net of loss allowance & ZEWEERZ - B EE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
ARBT R ARBTTT

Rt 2,471 250
Lease receivables, net of loss HERWFIE - NREE
allowance B 4,998 3,423
Prepaid listing expenses AN EMAX - 4,372
Other debtors H fth & Y 5118 1,080 697
Financial assets measured at REBHEKATEN SR
amortised cost BE 8,549 8,742

(a) Ageing analysis

As at the end of the reporting date, the ageing analysis of
trade debtors and lease receivable (which are included in
trade and other receivables), based on the invoice date
and net of loss allowances, is as follows:

(a) BRE D

RBEYRR  ERBEZAHLK
R B RBEENE 5 &R
EHERBKAGIAES R
H A UK IR) fREe D AT 2R S

2018 2017

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AR®T ARET T

Current BN ER 715 690

Within 3 months 31E A K 5,302 2,964

3 to 6 months 3%61# A 563 19

6 to 9 months 62 91E A 563 —

9 to 12 months 9F 121 A 563 —

Over 1 year 1A - 141
Less: allowance for impairment of 1 : 8 5 fEU k18

trade receivables VERIEREE] (237) (141)

7,469 3,673

Trade debtors and lease receivable are due pursuant
to the terms of the agreements. Further details on the
Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
debtors and lease receivables are set out in note 21(a).

164 Everbright Grand China Assets Limited o ¢ AKEBR AT
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(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH 16

FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

ReRREEEBUUAREMRER

(a HERHELEEYWES

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTTT
Deposits with banks RITER 181,277 42,383
Cash on hand FHEIR® 34 52
Cash and cash equivalents in SFEMBIRRR REE
the consolidated statement MERERANRE
of financial position and in LIS EEY
the consolidated cash flow
statement 181,311 42,435

As at 31 December 2018, the cash and bank balances
of the PRC subsidiaries comprising the Group is not
freely convertible into other currencies and subject to
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations.

R2018F 12 A31H * KAEEE
TEHEBARMNERE S RIR
THATSEHRERHEME
B 0 2 B ANEE B IR R 1)
RKHEE - EERNEEER
FEVPTBR & ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Bk ZHHAAI * FTBE EEHUARE T LY R)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH 16 HERBLSEEYURHEMBE SR

FLOW INFORMATION (continued) BEEHR(EA)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash

generated from operations:

(b) FEIFBEEELEEFHEHH

Note 2018 2017
oieEs RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARET T
Profit before taxation i B AR 53,269 38,075
Adjustments for: FEIFE -
Net valuation gain on HEYED
investment property HEKREFE 12 (33,787) (18,585)
Depreciation e 11 335 380
Finance costs &b & A 6(a) 1,614 2,194
Interest income MEKA 5 (1,147) (233)
Listing expenses ETAX 711 13,392
Net foreign exchange HIE
(gains)/losses (=) BB 5 (1,379) 564
Loss on disposal of HEREME
investment property " E 1R 423 -
Allowance for doubtful debts 2 5 EWHRARE
of trade receivables B8 15 96 —
Changes in working capital: BEEGEE
Decrease in properties held BHIELEME
for sale B = 1,742
Increase in trade and other B 5 & E R WK
receivables THIE AN (4,275) (1,028)
Increase in trade and other Z 5 REMmENK
payables and receipts-in- S SN GO
advance 10 8,415 3,861
Cash generated from operations &L & 1518 & 24,275 40,362
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH
FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

as cash flows from financing activities.

Bank
loans

RITEXR
RMB'000
AR®TR
(Note 18)
(KtzE18)

16 HERBLEEYURHEMBEESR
EER(E)

(c)

Listing
expenses

EHEX
RMB’000
ARETR
(Note 17)
(H&E17)

BEZETELRRBIH K

TREJNAKEEERELZS T
XONBBEEHFR(BERAE
LFRCED) BMEIBEL
MBEDNRERIARKNRE
MAOBRASEREZDES
ReRBiE -

Amounts
due from
intermediate
holding
company
EHN
BRAFANE
RMB’000
ARETR
(Note 22(c))
(K &F22(c)

Interest
payable Total
EFE
RMB’000
ARETR
(Note 17)
(Ha£17)

@
RMB’000
ARBT R

At1lanuary2018  R2018FIAIA 82500 @29 b4 T (34,789)
Changes from financing MERSRERE !

cash flows:
Repayment of bank loans ERRBITER 6,000 - - - 6,000
Interest paid BERFE - - 1,623 - 1,623
Aloan to intermediate holding RN ERAAER

company - - - 3,000 3,000
A loan repaid by intermediate PNERARERER

holding company - - - (3,000) (3,000)
Payment for listing expenses THEMHEY - 7,066 - - 7,066
Total changes from financing BEREREZHAL
_Cesnfows G0 roe6 168 - 14889
Other changes: Hit2s:
Interest expenses (note 6(a)) FEEZ (F6() - - (1,614) - (1,614)
Accrued listing expenses fEir LR = (r11) - - 1
Capitalised listing expenses BRI ETRAX

(note 20(c)) (B 7E20(c)) - (11,935) = = (11,935)
Prepayments of listing expenses ~ F B X B #IE - 4,372 - - 4372
Tototherchanges  RAME®EE - &2 L (0.888)
At 31 December 2018 #2018512A31A (26,500) (3,443) (45) - (29,989)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (BRZ A A - FTE S BEHUARE T LIIR)

16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER CASH 16 BERRESEEYUREMRER
FLOW INFORMATION (continued) EER(EA)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (c) BEIZTEFELEENEH K
activities (continued) (#4&)

Amounts
Bank Listing Interest  due froma
loans expenses payable related party Total

g

RITEH EHEX ERFE BHBEIRE @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIRT AR®Tn AR®TR ARE®TR AR%®TR

(Note 18) (Note 17) (Note 17)

(K&E18) (M EE17) (H&E17)

At1danuary 2017 ROITRIA1R podle T4 208 (45,822)
Changes from financing cash REREHEEH

flows:
Repayment of bank loans BERTER 15,313 - - -~ 15,313
Interest paid BfHE - - 2,214 - 2214
Repayments of borrowings from a £ B @# A&

related party - - - (2,065) (2,065)
Payment for listing expenses TR EmREE - 16,629 - - 16,629
Total changes from financing cash AR L RS E B A

o o lesls e 2zl 2063 80991
Other changes: Hit2s:
Interest expenses (note 6(a)) FEEZ (F36() - - (2,194) - (2,194)
Listing expenses (note 6(c)) IR (MzEe() - (13,392) - - (13,392)
Prepayments (note 15) B 508 (FizE15) - (4,372) = - (4,372)
Tototherchanges ~  A#B@as o (e o eey o (19958
At 31 December 2017 ®2017512531H (32,500) (2,239) (54) — (34,789)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Frk BB AN * B LEHUARE FLHIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 17 BEZRHMEMNRE

31 December 1 January 31 December

2018 2018 2017

20184 20184 20174

12A31H 1A81H 12A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®T T AR®T T

Trade payables B 5 e R IE 515 364 364

Interest payable JE 1~ 1) B 45 54 54

Other taxes and charges payable H b f& <t 5 18 & & 1,540 931 931

Deposits b A 5,550 5,883 5,883

Accrued payroll and other benefits &5t 3 & & H 0 1& 7] 5,087 1,733 1,733

Accrued listing expenses FEst EmHEX 3,443 2,235 2,235

Receipt-in-advance T8 W IR 7,184 7,652 8,327

Other payables H b & 1~ 3008 2,342 1,270 1,270

Financial liabilities measured at 1R # #4 A ZR 5+ £ 19

amortised cost TRIAR 25,706 20,122 20,797
Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15 (see note 1(c)(ii)), an HMCE B B REERDNFE 15512
opening adjustment of RMB675 thousand included as (R M sE1©)i) » st ATE S M E M
“Receipt-in-advance” under “Trade and other payables” was FENMFRIB B N EUEHIE |8 FHEESR
reclassified to contract liabilities (note 14). BARBSIST LETDEAELNE

B sE14) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

18

BANK LOANS

At 31 December 2018, the bank loans were repayable as
follows:

18 |ITERK

MR2018F 12 A31H - BEEMRIT
BT

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T

Bank loans — secured EEBBTER
— Within 1 year or on demand — 1FARIREKREE 6,000 6,000
— After 1 year but within 2 years — 1F&E2F R 6,000 6,000
— After 2 years but within 5 years — 2F 1B E5F A 14,500 20,500
— After 5 years — 5% 1& = -
20,500 26,500
26,500 32,500

Pursuant to the loan framework agreement with China
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch, the undrawn
banking facilities of the Group amounted to HKD300,000
thousand (equivalent to RMB262,860 thousand) as at 31
December 2018.

The effective interest rates of bank loans of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 were 5.15% (2017: 5.15%) per
annum.

Secured bank loan with a carrying value of RMB26,500
thousand as at 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB32,500
thousand) were secured by partial of Everbright International
Mansion with an aggregated carrying amount of RMB340,121
thousand (2017: RMB326,086 thousand) owned by the Group.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

BEERPBEXKRRITROBGRQF
EEDITHERERGZ  ~5E
R2018F 12 A31 H By R 12 BUIR 17 @t
& /300,000 FBL(HERARK
262,860F 7T) °

HZE2018FE12A31AILEE - K&
BRERTEXRNERFF X A515%
(20174 : 5.15%)

R2018F 12 A31H  BREE A A
E # 26,500 F L (20175F : AR ¥
32,500 F ) M B BIR 1T E XK
MAEEHENAFREERAR
¥ 340,121 F L(2017 F : AR ¥
326,086 F 7T) &Y # 15 & KB R K E
ERER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

19

financial position represents:

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of

19

)

(a

MBRRRPBOFEH

P LS E LT
# -

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARET T
PRC CIT PEEERSH
At the beginning of the year == 1,924 2,032
Provision for current taxation for — 4E k) B[ B £ 18 8 &
the year 5,929 4,552
Payments during the year FAMK (7,086) (4,660)
Attheendoftheyear  &X L 1,924
PRC LAT )+ EER
At the beginning of the year == - 2,372
Provision for LAT for the year F N HIBERR G = 472
Payments during the year FRNR - (2,844)
Attheendoftheyear &K - -
Current taxation as at the end of  EREVEAF 1B
the year 767 1,924
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Bk ZHHAAI * FTBE EEHUARE T LY R)

19 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 19 FEUBRRKRPHAESH(E)
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: b) EERELEHELZERBRE
() Movement of each component of deferred tax () EZEHESEENEESA
assets and liabilities R DK EE
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) FARGRETBRRERSP
recognised in the consolidated statement of RERIERIBEE, (8
financial position and the movements during the BE)HERE D REBIT

year are as follows:

Revaluation
Provision for of investment
depreciation property Others Total
RERE RENEENHE Eft ChH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Deferred tax arising from: EEBUTRENEEHE:
At 1 January 2017 W201761A1R (63,983) (99,008) 1,254 (151,737)
(Credited)/charged to profit o loss REET GEA) / Mk (3,485) (4,646) (654) (8,785)
At 31 December 2017 and R2017F12318 &

1 January 2018 2018%1A1R (57,468) (103,654) 600 (160,522)
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss REZF GIA) /Ml (3,037) (8,447) 698 (10,786)
At 31 December 2018 120185124318 (60,505) (112,101) 1,298 (171,308)

(ii) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement (i) ZEFHRRARNYEER

of financial position

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Net deferred tax asset REiRE M BARREK P
recognised in the BRIELCEHIEE
consolidated statement of B3
financial position 1,457 1,325
Net deferred tax liability NGRSO
recognised in the HROELERIES
consolidated statement of (P g-c]
financial position (172,765) (161,847)

(171,308) (160,522)
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(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

19

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the following items:

19 HEMBRRRPHNHAEHR (K

(c) FREZELHEEE

IR H T FIIR B #ERE T IR
BE

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTTT
Deductible temporary differences 7 #5289 7] 1 8 & A5 14
not recognised (note) =2 (fizx) 22,273 19,767
Unused PRC tax losses R EIEEE
(will expire in 2023) (¥ 2023F FHA) 3,942 -
26,215 19,767
Note: Deductible temporary differences not recognised mainly sy : AERNAINBEEEER

represent unpaid interests charged to Sing Kong City.

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(p), the Group has not recognized deferred tax assets
of RMB986 thousand in the year of 2018 in respect
of unused tax losses of Sing Kong City. The directors
consider it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilized will be available
in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2018, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted to
RMB85,614 thousand (2017: RMB68,820 thousand).
Deferred tax liabilities of RMB8,561 thousand (2017:
RMB6,882 thousand) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

T 5 (R OB U ) R (E
BB -

RIBH M 1) F TR -
REBWRBEIHAERNKEA
MIBEER2018FRNERAR
s T TR IBEEE °
EERANEBAREERRE
BB R 2R FERR B s B A] LA K
HEBMEEBRNEERX -

(d) AEFELEHEEE

R2018F 12 A31H © M B A A
MADK N 2 EREEZEA
AR ¥85,614F ;L (20174F = A
R #68,820F 7T) ° I K 3t 7 Ik
Z R ) E m AT B I
RIEER B B E A R %8561
Fx(2017F : AR¥6,882F
7T) 0 A AR R RE S % S M
BRAAMKREBKAHEEBEEA
BERAIERRRTEDIKEZE
FIE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Bk ZHHAAI * FTBE EEHUARE T LY R)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 20 X  RBEBRERRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) @AM D B EE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REBZREER SHERKI D
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated F ) B R AR H RSN AR
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes EEREBEER - ARBFHNE
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s FREFE R S AKX T D &
individual components of equity between the beginning BT

and the end of the year are set out below:

Company ¥ NN
Share Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
Note capital premium reserves reserves losses Total
& e ke ERGE PNERE i ER st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETz  ARETR  ARETR
Note (20(c)) Note (20(d)(ii))  Note (20(d)(i) Note (20(d)(iii))
ko)  HE(20()i)  HEQO)  KHEE(20(d) i)

Balance at 1 January 2017 ROITE1B1B B LR 213,975 - 10,311 (46,442) (9,591) 228,253
Changes in equity for 2017: WITERHED .
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (3,818 (3,818)
Other comprehensive income B2 EE - - - (11,042) - (11,042)
Total comprehensive income FENEES = - - (11,04 (3818) (14,860)
Balance at 31 December 2017 and 1 20175128318 R

January 2018 01851 B1 A L 273,975 - 10,311 (57,484) (13,409) 213,303
Changes in equity for 2018: 0185 EHEE
Loss for the year ERER - - - - (16,517) (16,517)
Qther comprehensive income Ef2EbE - - - 14,760 - 14,760
Total comprehensive income rANELE - - - 14,760 (16,517) (1,757)
Issue of ordinary shares under initial BREERAREE(ER

public offering(“IPO), net of share AREENETERR

issuance expenses NRROETRS 20(c)(i) 71,067 45,063 - - - 116,130
Balance at 31 December 2018 R2018F12R31 Ak 345,042 45,063 10,311 (42,724) (29,926) 327,766
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Frk BB AN * B LEHUARE FLHIR)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividend

The directors do not declare any dividend for the year of

2018 (2017: Nil).

(c) Share capital

20 EX  RHERRKRE(E)
(b) KE

EEWEF018FEE T IR EM
A% B (20174 : #&) o

(c) EKZE

At 31 December 2018
M2018%12H31H

At 31 December 2017
R20179F12 8318

No. of No. of
shares shares
&g g 1D B
’000 US$’000 000 US$’000
TR TER F A& FET
Authorised ordinary EEEER :
shares:
At the beginning of F 1)
the year 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000
Share Subdivision (i) AR D HF() 360,000 - — —
Increase in authorised % i& A% AN 38 A1 (i)
share capital (i) 3,600,000 360,000 — —
At the end of the year FR 4,000,000 400,000 40,000 40,000
AR W EYTT0 LT R At 31 December 2017
12018512831 H 2017512 H31H
No. of No. of
shares shares
&5 &8 ’HEE
’000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
TR ARET T Tk AR®TT
Ordinary shares, ERITHNE2HEABEE
issued and fully paid: &k :
At the beginning of ==
the year 33,100 273,975 33,100 273,975
Share Subdivision (i) R HFE2() 297,900 - — —
Issuance of ordinary BEEXAREER
shares under IPO (ii) 17 & 8 A (i) 110,400 71,067 — =
At the end of the year FR 441,400 345,042 33,100 273,975
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and is entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

(0

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution passed
on 15 December 2017, each of the existing issued
and unissued ordinary shares with a par value of
US$1.00 each in the share capital of the Company
was subdivided into 10 ordinary shares with a
par value of US$0.10 each so that the authorised
share capital of the Company became US$40,000
thousand divided into 400,000 thousand shares with
a par value of US$0.10 each, effective immediately
prior to the completion of the Global Offering
(the “Share Subdivision”), and the total issued
share capital was divided into 331,000 thousand
shares. Subsequent to the Share Subdivision, the
authorised share capital of the Company increased
from US$40,000 thousand divided into 400,000
thousand shares of US$0.10 each to US$400,000
thousand divided into 4,000,000 thousand shares of
US$0.10 each. Following the completion of Global
Offering on 16 January 2018, the total issued share
capital of the Company increased to US$44,140
thousand divided into 441,400 thousand shares.
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20 EX  HERRE(E)

(c) KE(&E

EBEFAABRKEBATRKE
KRS YEBEARAE
mLEBR-ZENRRE-TA
EBRREARNARNGBEEZTS

EEZ TR

U)

B ¥ % B 72017 F12 B
5EBEMNAESR  AQ
ARAHRFZREME1.003E
THRBEBEITRKE
TEBARKREEF D R0
B &R EE0.10% Ty &
B ABEARRAEER
A& E40,000F E7T 9
/400,000 F & & ik ®@ &
010ETH AR D - KR
EREFREETHATEN
(TRBmFED]) BB T
% 75 48 5t 4 331,000 F &
fE1p - BIDIFH & AR
&) TE IR A # ¢ 40,000 F
% 7t (9 A&400,000 F & &
A% E{E0.10 3% T A A% 17)
# % 400,000 F ET(H &
4,000,000 F % & i% @ &
010 T IR D) ° 72018
F1A16H 2R E K
% AREBEEITRAL
B 44140 F E T 0 &
A441,400F & 1D -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i

Upon completion of the IPO, the Company issued
110,400 thousand new shares at par value of
US$0.10 each for cash consideration of HK$1.41
each, and raised gross proceeds of approximately
HK$155,664 thousand (equivalent to RMB128,065
thousand at the exchange rate of HK$1.00 to
RMB0.8227). The respective share capital amount
was RMB71,067 thousand and share premium
arising from the issuance was approximately
RMB45,063 thousand, net of the share issuance
costs. The share issuance costs paid and payable
mainly include share underwriting commissions,
lawyers’ fees, reporting accountant’s fee and other
related costs, which are incremental costs directly
attributable to the issuance of the new shares.
These costs amounting to RMB11,935 thousand
were treated as a deduction against the share
premium arising from the issuance.

20 EX  HERRE(E)

(c)

BAE (&

(i)

BRAARBETKE
AAAREESRKROI0ZE
ToReRERER.A
7 7T %% 17 110,400 T A% %
BR-EBEMERERSE
#9155,664 T /& JT (1% [E &
1.007%8 7T % A K #0.8227
T E HERARY
128,065 F L) - R AN & 58
A ANR71,067 F 7T &40
BR AR 1D BE AT R AN B Y B 1T
e eEEBARARKE
45,063 F 7t - B R E
BRMDBEITRAETEBER
MEHME  EAMEB - H
MEFTMERAREMAERE
BRA  BRETHREERE
ERBENR - ZEKAR
EARMA1035F T 8
BHBITIEERD &E
B F0R ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

@i

(i)

Capital reserves

Capital reserves of the Group consisted of the
followings:

—  Merger reserves of RMB26,800 thousand,
which was resulted from business combination
in 2010 involving entities under common
control;

— Reserves of RMB44,685 thousand due to
share repurchase of International Mansion in
2014.

— Pursuant to a waiver agreement dated 31
December 2016, Capital Century Company
Limited agreed to waive an amount of
RMB10,311 thousand due from the Company.
The waiver of liabilities was recorded as
an equity transaction and recorded in the
consolidated statement of equity.

This reserve can be used to pay distributions or
dividends to equity shareholder.

Share Premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of the business.
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20 BEX  #ERRE(E)

(d) REHMEERAEZ

U]

(i)

BEXRfEE

AEBNEARBEERET
R

— AR %26,800F THY

EOtREE BREREE
ThRR20106F B W Kk
E =6 T B 88 HEB
EHEE

— HE2014FEBRBEKE

R% 5 B8 B 1 1 H A9 A
R #44,685T 7T &) f7&
& e

—  BHEN2016412 A31

H 7] 3 A % Bk B 75
#F BB XEERA
ARAERBRARA A
R #10,311 F T X
B BHABEERRE
REBRERZ S W EA
AR RE -

SRR P 1 5 3
AEEREXABRE -

R 43 7% 8

ERRMDEERIHASEH
SERBEEE - RERE
BERAE  ARAKRHD
mERANE A H DK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)
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(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Exchange reserves

The exchange reserves comprise all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

PRC statutory reserves

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer
10% of their profit after taxation (after offsetting the
losses in the preceding years), as determined under
the PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover
previous years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by the issue of new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing
shareholdings or by increasing the par value of the
shares currently held by them, provided that the
balance after such issue is not less than 25% of the
registered capital.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

20 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (continued)

(e) Capital management

(f)

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for equity shareholder and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing rental and management fee commensurately
with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at
a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged throughout the year ended 31 December
2018.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank loans
less cash and cash equivalents, and equity of the Group,
comprising issued share capital, retained profits and
other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure periodically. Based on the operating budgets,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and balances
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debts.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements throughout the year ended 31 December
2018 (2017: nil).

Distributable reserves
At 31 December 2018, the aggregate amount of reserves

available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to RMB25,448 thousand (2017: nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)
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(BEEFAN  MESEAUARETTIIR)

21

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, and interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade debtor and lease receivable. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents is limited because the counterparties
are bank, for which the Group considers to have low
credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk.

Trade receivables

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the customers
operate, and therefore significant concentrations of
credit risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 23% (2017: 4%) and 69% (2017:
24%) of trade and other receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

21
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

21

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
debtors and lease receivable are due pursuant to the
terms of the agreements. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade debtors
and lease receivable at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)
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21

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
The following table provides information about the

Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
debtors and lease receivable as at 31 December 2018:

21

ERMIANYBERBREERQAAE
18 (%)

(a

= &7 b (&)

TRIZMH A EN2018F 12 A31

BEAEEHGENEERRRE
2 e W AR Tk e 7 B R W FRIE R

HEEBHENER -

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
BHEEE BEREE BiERE
% RMB’000 RMB’000
% AR T AR TR
Current (not past due) BUER (R ER) 1% 715 7
Within 3 months 31E A K 1% 5,001 50
3 to 6 months # Hi3 = 61E A 2% 563 11
6 to 9 months #1 Bi6 = 91 A 4% 563 23
9 to 12 months BHA9E 121& A 6% 563 34
More than one year BE1F LA 10% — —
7,405 125

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past three years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Fr BB HRBIN - FTE B AARE T LHIR)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 21
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment (see note 1(h)(i)-policy applicable prior to 1
January 2018). At 31 December 2017, trade debtors and
lease receivable of RMB141 thousand were determined
to be impaired. The aging analysis of trade debtors that
were not considered to be impaired was as follows:

ERMIANYBRABREERQAIAE
18 (%)

(a

= &7 b (&)

BERETHEREIRNLERE
*SI-

M2018F1 A1HAT - BEEIE
EREREBREZBRRER(R
B 3E1(h)()-2018 41 A1 B A i@
A& BEK) - 12017412 A 31
H - ZE5RKERREEREK
RBARE1MNTIHRETE A
ERE THESERENE
FEWERFHERRDITOT -

2017

RMB’000

AR® T

Within 3 months 3fE AR 3,654
3 to 6 months # HA3E61E A 19
6 to 9 months 1 Bi6 = 9 1R A —
9 to 12 months BHEROE 1218 A =
Over one year BAEFE L E 141
3,814

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to one independent customer that had a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believed that no impairment allowance was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the balances
were still considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)
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21

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 21 ERMITENPEEREERAAE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a ERE(E)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of FRNEBEBESERERREE
trade debtors and lease receivable during the year is as U ZENEEEERZESN
follows: T
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFTTT
Balance at 31 December 2017 BEBBSFTERIZFEI9
under HKAS 39 FEF2017F12H31H
B 45 R 141 —
Impact on initial application of BREABRETBERE
HKFRS 9 ERFIRTLE — -
Balance at 1 January =~ W1A1RMeEs o 147
Amounts reversed during the year 74 ;A B &9 28 (141) -
Impairment losses recognised RERNERRREEIRE
during the year 237 =
Balance at 31 December W12 A31 B ) &5 64 237 141

The following significant changes in the gross carrying
amounts of trade debtors and lease receivable
contributed to the increase in the loss allowance during
2018:

— lease receivable with a carrying amount of RMB112
thousand was assessed as individually impaired;

— origination of new trade debtors and lease
receivable net of those settled resulted in an
increase in loss allowance of RMB125 thousand;

— a reversal of trade debtor with a gross carrying
amount of RMB141 thousand resulted in a decrease
in loss allowance of RMB141 thousand.

B 5 R RN E W R IE 4R
RREEHR) T 5 B RKEEHRN2018
FERBEREEN

— EFEHEEAARE12F T
B FEE E W R E T S A
RIRE

— EXEMEZIRUERLHE
ERWKREGNKERS
FE)EHERBEEEMA
K125F 7T

— BREREEAEARARK
1M TFTHE S ERER
BEREBERBRIAR
¥141F T -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)  (

b= B HAN

B EBEEUAARE T ITIIR)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 21

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent company’s board when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and readily realisable marketable securities and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computing using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Frk BB AN * B LEHUARE FLHIR)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 21 ERIANVBEEAREERAAE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HEELEREE)

As at 31 December 2018
Contractual undiscounted cash flows
R2018%12R31H
BHNAMRRERE
More than  More than Carrying
Within1 1 yearbut 2 years but EI

year or on less than less than  More than at 31

demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total December
1FRE BBI1F B2 M12A31A
REREBE (BHR2FE  EONSE HiB5F CH HkEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR%Tn ARBTR ARETT ARETR

Trade payables, accruals and ~ Z ZEF VA - [ExF 508

other payables REMERTRE 12,972 - - - 12,972 12,972
Bank loans — current FITER — B 7,286 - - - 7,286 6,000
Bank loans — non-current BITER — FEH - 7,471 14,900 - 22,371 20,500

20,258 7,471 14,900 - 42,629 39,472

As at 31 December 2017
Contractual undiscounted cash flows

R2017512R318

RNAERRLRE
More than  More than Carrying
Within1 1 yearbut 2 years but amount
yearoron lessthan2 lessthan5 More than5 at 31
demand years years years Total December
1ERE BB1E BiBofF M12A31R
REXREE (GOM2FE ALRGE BB5F it HREE

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AREBTR ARMTR AR®TR ARET:R

Trade payables, accruals and ~ E ZERFUE » [E:F 508

other payables REM TR 6,587 = = = 6,587 6,587
Bank loans — current BTER — H 7,595 = = = 7,595 6,000
Bank loans — non-current RITER — FEHH = 7,286 22,371 = 29,657 26,500

14,182 7,286 22,371 = 43,839 39,087
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Bk ZHHAAI * FTBE EEHUARE T LY R)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 21 ERIANVBEEAREERAAE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) B (%)

(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIEmEE

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest BHEAREBAHRR K&
rate risk arises primarily from cash and cash equivalents WA REBREITEELAARS N
and bank loans. ReZEMARBITER -

MNERBRASEHRIENAAE
B RRIE R E R TS X

BRRITRE M EBH T E Y
REAEY AEAEETE
HEARRERASZEYN
FAFRER -

The Group is not exposed to significant interest rate risk
for cash and cash equivalents because the interest rates
of cash at bank are not expected to change significantly.

() Interest rate profile (i) F=EMRR

TREAENBEHR - K
5 1B {8 FRAR B A R =K%

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s total borrowings at the end of the

reporting period. B sEg o
2018 2017
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
% RMB’000 % RMB’000

Variable rate borrowings: % !

Bank loans

e

s
ERNN
()
S

\

ERANZ  ARBTR

5.15% 26,500

ERME  ARETE

5.15% 32,500
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)
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(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

21

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2018, it is estimated that a general
increase of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB199 thousand (2017:
RMB244 thousand).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) that would arise assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period.

(d) Currency risk

Almost all the Group’s operating activities are carried out
in the PRC with most of the transactions denominated
in RMB. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise
from certain of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
which are denominated in HKD. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign currency
exposures regularly and consider no significant exposure
on its foreign exchange risk.

21

ERMIANMBRBREERQAAE
18 (%)

(c)

(d)

AeRREFED

Cash and cash equivalents

IR (&)
(i) BREDH

201812 A31H * &
Fl=2EeE FER100E &2
mprE EMmEERRETD
g RAlescAEBRNBR
B R AR B AR A& A
R¥199F L (20174 = A
R#244F ) o

Fil BUREE T R R R
B AEENHRIER
(REFE) A E LA H

ERAR

AEEETF2RELEHTE
TEET BREIRZAA
REsfE AKENETHER
EkReEEBWIIABITEE "
BN B B R E R e
AEEYTESATESRTA
BRSNS B o B AN B E
EEINERRE  BAXTRAE
mEREAINER R

2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTTT
139,857 8,578
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(B =AM

B EBEEUAARE T ITIIR)

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF 21
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s profit after tax (and retained
profits) and other components of consolidated
equity that would arise if foreign exchange rates to
which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period had changed at that date,
assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

ERMIANMBRBREERQAAE

{8 (4&)
(d) E#mEkEHE)
() BRBREDH
TRBR  AKEERKRE
HA R T R 55 K AL fe 0 O B

2018

Increase/

(decrease)
in foreign

exchange

rates

SME BB =
#i,/ (Bd)

BT 5%
(5)%

Hong Kong Dollars

Effect on
profit after
tax and
retained
profits
HH#%
MERRE
gilbeY:nk-7
RMB’000
AR TR
5,245
(5,245)

EXRZARDE A%
05414 7 (R R 8 L)
WA Bt & 8 A0 K A 36

WA EBH(REMAH
fo BB R R AT
) o
2017
Increase/

(decrease) Effect on
in foreign  profit after tax
exchange  and retained

rates profits
iR

MEER  MERKE
Zm/0Rd)  FMENZE
RMB’000

ARETT

5% 322

(5)% (322

Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the Group entities’ profit after tax
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into RMB at the exchange rate ruling
at the end of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure cash and cash equivalents held by the
Group which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2017.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Frk BB AN * B LEHUARE FLHIR)

22 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 2 FEBEHBEAIRS
(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a FTEEEANSFHH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the KEETFTEEEAENETN(E
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s EM S BEE AR A &=
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest ENeRBEMEFIOMBER N
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: ETEaTxMEEMNSRE) W
AR :
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTFT
Director’s fee =ik - —
Salaries, allowances and benefits ¥ & « 284 &
in kind IEIR & F 3,381 946
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 2,460 =
Retirement scheme contributions R {KET 2|70 214 24
6,055 970
The above remuneration to key management personnel P TFTETEETEAEDN
is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)). FEE AT THRAI(R W&
B(b)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Fr BB HRBIN - FTE B AARE T LHIR)

22 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Name and relationship with related parties

22 FEBBALIXZ(HE)

(b) BHLHEEREBH T HE

%
During the year ended 31 December 2018, transactions KRB E2018F 12 31 H £ F
with the following parties are considered as related party B HETIZEFTETLHRFHE

transactions:

Name of party

BAME S &8

BREBITRS :

Relationship with the Group
BEAEENER

China Everbright Group Company Ltd.

PR REERD A A

Capital Century Company Limited (“Capital
Century”)

B K EBRAR (TEEKE])

Everbright Securities Company Limited* (“CE
Securities”)

RARBEHFBRDBRAR ([KKREZEH])
China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd.* (“CE Bank”)

PEERRITRO AR DA ([HEEKRET])
China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. Hong Kong
Branch (“CE Bank Hong Kong Branch”)

REXRRITROEBRARBTESTT
([HBEXRRITEEDIT])

China Everbright Securities (HK) Limited
(“EBS”)

FEXAES (BE)BRAA

Intermediate holding company
R IERR A A
Intermediate holding company

R ER A A

Company controlled by China Everbright (Group)
Company Limited, an intermediate holding
company

PR REERDARIZESHNAR - PNERAF

Company controlled by China Everbright (Group)
Company Limited, an intermediate holding
company

PR AEERD R FHERIERF] - RITERAF]

Company controlled by China Everbright (Group)
Company Limited, an intermediate holding
company

REXAEERD QABZEGEHNAR] - AOERA A

Company controlled by China Everbright (Group)
Company Limited, an intermediate holding
company

RENAEEROD QA FZEGEHNAT - ROERA A

([HRBEXKREH])
Mr. Liu Jia Executive director and the chairman of the
Company
£ RAGMITEERERE
Mr. Lin Zimin Executive director of the Company
MEH K E RAGIMITES
Mr. Lee Wai Kwong Senior manager of the Company
BRI 4 ZONSIEST TS
* The English translation of the entities’ names is for reference * BEZERLZENECELEHSZ

only. The official names of these entities are in Chinese.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Frk BB AN * B LEHUARE FLHIR)

22 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 22 FEBEBAXRS(E)
(continued)

(c) Significant related party transactions (c) EXBEEIXZ

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLLFE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBF T

Repayments of borrowings from a {32 @88 77 (& 3K

related party = 2,725
Amounts due from shareholders & Y i% 58 3118 5 —
Repayments from shareholders  AREE X 5 -
Amount due from intermediate FEM 1 RR A R FKIE

holding company 3,000 =
Repayment from intermediate Pl F/NETE=F ¢

holding company 3,000 2,065
Expense paid on behalf of the el S aWN/NE]

Company by a related party TREX - 2,725
Property leasing income from BEABAFSMERE

related parties (Note (a)) WA (Bt 5E(a)) 6,289 6,177
Payment of listing expenses to a Al @88 5 2~ E R X

related party 2,000 1,800
Banking facilities from a related R 8 BB 5 AR 1T R E

party 262,858 053,731
Placement of deposits FEHRER 1,066,475 49,974
Withdrawal of deposits REUE R 1,031,366 67,971
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Bk ZHHAAI * FTBE EEHUARE T LY R)

22 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(d) Balances with related parties

22 FEBBALIXZ(HE)

(d) HEEBHGHEEE

The Group Year ended 31 December
rEH HZE12A31BLLEE
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEEY
(Note (a)) (B 7% (@) 46,118 9,948
Trade and other payables B 5 N E i EAFRIE 3,348 3,302
Note (a): The related party transaction in respect of property Mizt@ : BEABBAREFHFKLAKX
leasing income from CE Securities and CE Bank and WITHWERERAD A

deposits service from CE Bank constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in section Connected
Transactions of the Directors’ Report.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

Bt R 5 RHKEKNBITER
AR 7 18 Ak = 83 Al ZE 14A
EMAENREBER
5 o £ A E14AE ]
THEBEERNNES SR
LEER S iR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated) (Frk BB AN * B LEHUARE FLHIR)

23 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 23 XA B BMR K
POSITION

2018 2017
\CCW  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
pEl AR®TR  ARRTn NSNS e

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property and equipment EYE 97 —
Investments in subsidiaries YNGR 116,993 112,603
117,090 ) 717172,767073”
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries &l ¥ B A B8 188,648 189,992
Trade and other receivables & 5 Jx H b FE U FUE 409 4,675
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BH&REEZEY 117,959 4,575
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, sr0t6 19142
Current liabilities REaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries  [E{T KB A FZRIB 92,839 96,117
Other payables Hth 3R 3,501 2,235
96,340 982
Net current assets REEEZE 210,676 100,790
Total assets less current ZEERABERER 327,766 213,393
liabilities and net assets BERE
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARGFHE
Share capital R 20(c) 345,042 273,975
Reserves i (17,276) (60,582)
TOTAL EQUITY Enan 327,766 213,393
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on EFEN2019F3A19R L E L B #
19 March 2019. T3 o
Directors E
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

24

25

26

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 and HKFRS 9
at 1 January 2018. Under the transition methods chosen,
comparative information is not restated. Further details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed in note (1 (c)).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

On 3 January 2017, by an instrument of transfer, Capital
Century, the sole shareholder of the Company, transferred
29,790 thousand and 3,310 thousand shares, representing
all of its shares in the Company to two of its wholly owned
subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI, Lucky Link Investments
Limited (“Lucky Link”) and Top Charm Investments Limited
(“Top Charm”) respectively. Thereafter, Lucky Link and Top
Charm became direct shareholders of the Company. Following
the completion of Global Offering, Lucky Link and Top Charm’s
shares of the Company were 67.49% and 7.5% respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, the directors consider the immediate
holding company and ultimate controlling party of the Group
to be Lucky Link and China Investment Corporation which
are incorporated in BVI and the PRC respectively. The entities
does not produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2018

Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2018 and which have not been early adopted by
the Group.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

24

25

26

LR BB

AEER2018F1A1B 5 REKB(E
SIS RS R E 155 R(E B
BmELERDFN - RIEFMIRER
BEAFR  TESILERER-FB
BEBREREHNE—THBERR
RH 1) °

HEEERAARRKEZERAR

R2017F1A3H » AR A A E—%
REBIPR K F A E M H R RS
HBRHESTFMANLORMREEKR
BRAAXEREARQAR(IKE]D
REXZHREBERAR(EE] 55
85 :220,790F M 3,310 F B I 1 (&
HRARBIHEHRG) - 2% %
EREERABRARARNEERE -
EPHRBEETHE  FEREED
A KR AE]67.49% M 7.5%H X5 o

MR2018F12A31H EFR A K
EENFNIERAARZTEIERT
ARERTEKREEREETAT(H
AREBERRES RPEZMAK
M) ZEEBREARIEAREHN

M B HEK

REZE2018F12A3B L FECHE
i {B e R AERERT A - HET 2R
RRENEBEESE

HEZSUBHRREMGEH B
IR AEEM T RE E20184F
12A3BEFERRERAELREE
M AR R RNASE] A R ET 2R o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

78 2 e B ()

(REEHAI - AESEHAARE T LIIR)

26 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2018 (continued)

NEBE2018F12A31B L EECE
B & R AE MBS ET AR « FeT Al
PRENEBEESE(E)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTBHE

ZERBN

S HEER

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
(BEEMBREERFI6 HE 201951 A1H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019
55 (BERMEREREEEY) - RBERN  EHEEZ TRTEHE 20191 A1 H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
(BB IS 2RI ) 20164 20174 [ iR F /& BUE 201941 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interest in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2019
(BBGLEADFE28R (BRIAR) RELLAIREEPR S R #ER 20191 HA1H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below.

While the assessment has been substantially completed for
HKFRS 16, the actual impact upon the initial adoption of this
standard may differ as the assessment completed to date
is based on the information currently available to the Group,
and further impacts may be identified before the standard is
initially applied in the Group’s interim financial report for the six
months ended 30 June 2019. The Group may also change its
accounting policy elections, including the transition options,
until the standard is initially applied in that financial report.

AL E A E T RS G R
o A 2 R 6 2045 54 ) 2 6 A
EENPE - BRPENE— 5
A T X 8 -

F(BEABYBHRELER)FE165RETT
WA BEABTEK VP HENZE
AN ERYER L RIE S TR
HEMTR AEERAEEE R
ARENMER M —FEEA
EREREREIRAEEEZ
20196 A30H 175 1@ A & Hi B 7% =R
ERER AEBTERE K
KHER RIEAEEERE HEZE
EAVTEARZUBRE BRI -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R 7 2% e B ()

(Expressed in thousands of RMB, unless otherwise indicated)

(BEEHAN  ESEAUARE T TIHIR)

26

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2018 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(g), currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under
a lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease
the lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the
present value of the minimum future lease payments and will
recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial
recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a systematic basis over the
lease term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not
to apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to
be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

26 MNEZE2018F12A3MHLFEEME

B RERBIEET A - #ETE A
RERENBEELE (R

(BEEHBHEER)E16%  HE

REMFIQFMEESE - NEBRE
REESBARERERKEEHE -
YHREHENDBEATRN T A
REELRH AKBER/LEAR
METHEA - mE A& R E &
MARIL °

EHKE BV B REERDFE16HE D
SHHEAAREOEBETENEE
BOOABEAFE - AWM — 8B
RACE B M B |E LER)FE165] -
EEAKIERMEHERES
HE -HR TERRENRR
EHARZEARAEREHEST
FEREUN T AARMERLY - IR
BAFGE A AR AR RRER
BEHENRNRERANMGTERE
BE UHKERBERNIEREIE
E-VEBRRAZEERBER &
HAKBEREERBEREEGEHM
EENANEXHRERBEEENE -
MFRBEREBRREERRNERR
L EREEHERTMELANHE
TRX - ER—RAERBRENS
O ARBEATEESAKEEAER
ERNEHEE(BNESR+ @A
FUNT)REBEEENHE K&
EBERT HeRXK@EEXNHEB
MRS R -
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26

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
2018 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease. However, as the Group does not have
any material operating lease commitment during the year, the
application of the new accounting model is expected to have
no material impact for the Group’s financial statements.

Upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019, the
present value of most of the future minimum lease payments
that are payable after 12 months will be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets recognised
as non-current assets. The Group will need to perform a more
detailed analysis to determine the amounts of new assets and
liabilities arising from operating lease commitments on adoption
of HKFRS 16, after taking into account the applicability of the
practical expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into or
terminated between now and the adoption of HKFRS 16.

26 MNEBZE2018F12HA31BLEECHE

i B e R AERERT A - HET 2R
RERENBEELE (R

(BEMBHEER)F16%  HE

1

(48

(BEAEMBHREEA)F16H LR
TEARSEERAHEAHEENYE
BEMEBECREDALSKEHE)
MEF % - BHERAF RN
REREERBEOBMEM A
TEEHOHBARNERRNERRF
XHEE AR BAEERFER
TEREMEAEEHEAE  BAY
ERFHEtEABRNEENY K H
RIEBEAZE -

20191 A1H 8 XK WKE BT %
HwEEADE 165 E - N12E B EME
HHRIFLARFERENRNE
ERERAEBEEAE HENER
BEERRRIERDEE - LEE
EREEZINEAERARERG SR
KRB AR BEERDE16% 2 M
BRIUSRIENEMBLE A&
B EETEAFANSNUNERE
RO BE AN BRELEADFE 165 1%
KEHEREMELENTEERSE
EHSEE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 — (Expressed in RMB)

HZE2018F12A31B L FE — (AARKET|R)

A summary of the result and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years as extracted from the published

AEBBERLERBRFENEEARE
EFRBE(NHBAEE AMNKEXMBR

audited financial statements is set out below: RN EREOT -
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEXEE
Year ended 31 December
EZ12A3BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
VRO RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
INLESA AR TT ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTT
REVENUE e 61,742 66,657 55,936 59,386 57,119
PROFIT BEFORE TAX A1 A 53,269 38,075 45,958 47,799 54,753
Income tax credit/(expense) FEBES,/ (%) (16,715) (13,809) (14,444) (13,494) (15,082)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AEE 36,554 24,266 31,514 34,305 39,671
Attributable to: AN AL &L
Owners of the Company N/NGIEZZ =N 36,554 24,266 31,514 34,305 31,427
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES mEEEREE
31 December
12A31H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
VRO RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
INLEPA AEETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 1,109,498 936,333 915816 970,793 941,166
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE (230,443) (217,068)  (219,929)  (317,167)  (322,258)
NET ASSETS FEE 879,055 719,265 695,887 653,626 618,908
Note: The results and summary of assets and liabilities for each of the three  Bff5E : & Z=20144 - 20154 K 2016F 12 A31 H

years ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016 which were extracted
from the Prospectus have been prepared on a combined basis to
indicate the results of the Group as if the group structure, at the time
when the Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange, had

been in existence throughout those years.
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L=EAFERFZEEANREERAE
BME(RAERKRER) JIIRER
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